
August 05, 2014 
City Commission Room, 700 N. Jefferson, Junction City KS 66441 

  
Mayor Michael Ryan  

Vice Mayor Mick McCallister  
Commissioner Pat Landes 
Commissioner Jim Sands 
Commissioner Cecil Aska 

City Manager Cheryl Beatty 
City Attorney Catherine Logan 

City Clerk Tyler Ficken 
  

1.  7:00 P.M. - CALL TO ORDER 

 a.  Moment of silence 

 b.  Pledge of Allegiance 

2.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  The Commission requests that comments be limited to a maximum of 
five minutes for each person. 

3.  CONSENT AGENDA:  All items listed are considered to be routine by the City Commission 
and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
a Commissioner so requests, in which event the item will be removed from consent status and 
considered in its normal sequence on the agenda. 

a. Consideration of Appropriation Ordinance A-14 dated--July 9 2014-July 29th  in 
the amount of $2,947,955.61 

b. Consideration of Letter of Support for Ft. Riley. 

c. Consideration of City Commission Minutes for 7-15-2014. 

d. Approval of special assessment list to be sent to Geary County for 2013 tax roll 
billing. 

e. Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution (R-2765) for a Water Watch within 
the City for Voluntary Water Conservation Restrictions 

f. Consideration and Approval for the Declaration of various equipment within the 
Department of Public Works as Surplus  

g. Consideration of June 2014 ambulance contractual obligation adjustments and 
bad debt adjustments. 

h. Consideration of payroll #14 & #15 for the month of July 

4. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 

a. Breastfeeding month proclamation. 
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5. PUBLIC HEARING: 

a. A Public Hearing to consider condemnation of property at 518 W 3rd St and 
approval of Resolution 2763.  

5.  NEW BUSINESS: 

a. Consideration of the 2013 Audit. 

b. Consideration of Real Estate Lien Subordination Agreement.  

c. Public Hearing & Consideration of 2015 budget for publication. 

d. Consideration of Quality Trust Revolving Loan. 

e. Consideration of award of bid for the expansion & renovation of 701 N. Jefferson. 

f. Consideration and Approval of a Contract Amendment - Storm Water 
Management Master Plan Public Outreach Program. 

g. Consideration and approval of a award of bid airport fuel containment facility. 

h. Consideration of Ordinance G-3128 a request to rezone certain property in 
Junction City, Kansas, located at 807 Barnhill Circle. 

6.  COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: 

7.  STAFF COMMENTS: 

8.  ADJOURNMENT: 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

a. Consideration of Appropriation Ordinance A-14 dated--July 9 2014-July 29th  in 
the amount of $2,947,955.61 
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     Aug 5th 2014 

Cynthia Sinklier, Water Billing and Accounts Payable Manager  

City Commissioners

Consideration of Appropriation Ordinance A-14 dated--July 9 2014-July 
29th  in the amount of $2,947,955.61 

      

Background: Attached is a listing of the Appropriations for -Jul 9 2014 Jul 29th 2014 

Appropriations Jul 9 2014-Jul 29 2014 

 

Vendors Due and/or with ACH Payments 

Security of Kansas  $426,601.84 

KS State Treasurer  $9,094,473.15 

KDHE    $300,370.21 

Emprise Bank   $29,643.20 

Petty Cash   $3,930.17 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

b. Consideration of Letter of Support for Ft. Riley. 

  

63



August 5, 2014 Meeting 

From:  Cheryl S. Beatty, Interim Manager/Finance Director 

To:  City Commissioners  

Subject:  Fort Riley Support Letter 

Objective: Approval of the letter of support for Fort Riley. 

Explanation of Issue:  The Junction City Military Affairs Council is requesting that the City 
Commission, organizations, and individuals write letters of support for Fort Riley.  Federal budget 
cuts have the potential of impacting Fort Riley and letters of support could influence the decision 
makers on how much and where reductions are made. 

Staff Recommendation:   

Budget Impact:  None. 

Motion:  I,______________, move to (approve, modify, or deny) the letter of support for Fort Riley. 

Attachments: Letter of Support 
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Admin  
wwt heads do not report in sick           

             
           

August 5, 2014 

U.S. Army Commander 
SPEA Public Comments 
2450 Connell Road, Building 2264 
San Antonio-Fort Sam Joint Base 
Houston, TX 8234-7664 

 Importance to Junction City and Region 

Dear Commander: 

Fort Riley has long been recognized as a key component to the Flint Hills Region to ensure the safety of 
our region, country and world.  Junction City has worked diligently to ensure the success of Fort Riley, 
which has included but not limited to improving services for the health and well-being of the soldiers and 
their families and has expended millions of dollars for housing expansion.  This was done to ensure that 
the Army could expand and achieve its mission in a cost effective manner.   

Fort Riley is e  is completely 
 a 

very large financial commitment to support Fort Riley during its time of expansion. 

The Flint Hills Region and the State of Kansas has improved access to Fort Riley through highway 
interchange improvements, construction of new highways, and improvements to existing highways that 
surround Fort Riley.  In addition, medical and emergency service improvements, education improvements 
on and off base, recreation and quality of life improvements, regional bus system improvements that 
interface with the base, and more than adequate, affordable housing improvements have been made 
throughout the region to ensure the success of Fort Riley. 

Junction City and area leaders have built strong partnerships with Fort Riley with successes that include 
zoning protection around Fort Riley, government support partnership agreements, financial support to 
military affair councils, and veteran affairs support.  In addition, our membership to the Flint Hills 
Regional Council  formation solidifies and strengthens our bond with Fort Riley.    

Junction City is very committed to the success of Fort Riley and requests the Army consider this very 
 

Sincerely, 

Mike Ryan, Mayor 
Junction City Commission      

 
Administration 
www.junctioncity-ks.gov 
 
Federal I.D. #48-6019171 
 

P.O. Box 287 
701 North Jefferson Street 
Junction City, KS 6644-0287
 
Phone: 785-238-3103 Ext. 305 
Fax: 785-223-4262 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

c. Consideration of City Commission Minutes for 7-15-2014. 
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CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
  

July 15, 2014                                                                                              7:00p.m.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The scheduled meeting of the Junction City Commission was held on Tuesday, 
July 15, 2014 with Mayor Michael Ryan presiding. 
 
The following members of the Commission were present: Cecil Aska, Pat 
Landes, Mick McCallister, Michael Ryan, and Jim Sands. Staff present was: 
Interim City Manager Beatty, City Attorney Logan, and City Clerk Ficken. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Larry Johnson stated that he is in support of the 36 foot wide driveways, but he is 
concerned that it will still not be allowed on his property. 
 
Kenneth Dunham of 1324 Hoover Rd. stated that if the proposed park closures 
occur there will be a lack of parks on the east side of town. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Consideration of Appropriation Ordinance A-13 dated June 25, 2014 to July 8, 
2014 in the amount of $968,249.30. Commissioner Aska moved, seconded by 
Commissioner Landes to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Ayes: 
Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion carried. 

Consideration of City Commission Meeting Minutes for July 1, 2014. Aska 
moved, seconded by Commissioner Landes to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion 
carried. 

 
NEW BUSINESS   
 
Consideration of the increase for skate admissions, skate mate rentals, party 
packages and special events. Commissioner Landes asked if advertising efforts 
have been made on Ft. Riley. Recreation & Parks Director Lazear stated that a 
billboard is being installed in I-70, but the budget for advertising is otherwise 
limited.  Commissioner Sands moved, seconded by Commissioner McCallister to 
approve increases to Spin City admissions, skate mate rentals, party packages 
and special events as presented. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. 
Nays: none. Motion carried. 

Consideration and approval of the purchase of a 2007 Chevrolet from the State 
of Kansas Surplus for the fire department, Chief Royse presenting. 
Commissioner McCallister asked if marking and lights would be needed for the 
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vehicle.  Battalion Chief Rook stated that the cost for putting the vehicle in 
service would be approximately $7,500. Chief Royse stated that these deals do 
not come often. Commissioner Landes asked why the Suburban is better than 
the truck. Chief Rouse stated that oxygen bottles are stored better, and rear 
compartment storage is more accessible. Interim City Manager Beatty asked that 
Department Heads search for good used vehicles instead of buying new; this is a 
cost savings. Commissioner Sands moved, seconded by Commissioner Landes 
to approve purchase of a 2007 Chevrolet Suburban from state of Kansas surplus 
in an amount not to exceed $22,000.00. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, 
Sands. Nays: none. Motion carried.  

Consideration and Approval of a Resolution for Engineering Design Standards 
Amendment - Residential Driveways. Commissioner McCallister asked if side 
loaded corner lots would be allowed to be 36 feet within the proposed standard. 
Mr. McCaffery replied no, but the language could be added. Commissioner 
Sands stated that the City needs to do what the taxpayers want. Commissioner 
Landes moved, seconded by Commissioner Aska to approve R-2762 as 
amended to include language for corner lots. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, 
Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion carried. 

Consideration and Approval of Service Authorization for Water System 
Improvements - Engineering Design. Commissioner Sands asked if the public 
would be involved with the kickoff meeting. Mr. McCaffery stated that the kickoff 
meeting would include City staff HDR, and other parties with an active role in the 
project. Mr. Lindeman with HDR stated that updates will be provided to the 
Commission and thus the Community as indicated with progress percentages as 
outlined in the scope. Commissioner Landes moved, seconded by Commissioner 
Sands to approve Engineering Service Authorization for Water System 
Improvements with HDR in an amount not to exceed $1,029,462.00. Ayes: Aska, 
Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion carried. 

Consideration and Approval of Service Authorization of Wastewater System 
Improvements - Engineering Design. Commissioner McCallister stated that the 
scope of work is very detailed. Commissioner Sands moved, seconded by 
Commissioner McCallister to approve Engineering Service Authorization for 
Wastewater System Improvements with HDR in an amount not to exceed 
$779,606.00. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion 
carried. 

Consideration and Approval of Award of Waiver of Bid and Sole Source 
Purchase of Wastewater Systems Immediate Needs (Chlorine Metering Pumps) 
SW WWTP. Commissioner McCallister stated that the vendor looks to be the 
same as presented previously. Mr. Lindeman stated that HDR negotiated directly 
with the subcontractor which produced a savings. Commissioner McCallister 
moved, seconded by Commissioner Sands to approve the waiver of bid, based 
on the chlorine metering pump units being sole sourced and approval of a 
contract with Fluid Equipment, Inc. for the removal and replacement of the SW 

68



WWTP Chlorine Metering Pumps, in an amount not to exceed $47,000. Ayes: 
Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion carried. 

Consideration of the Waiver of Bid and Award of a Contract for the Sole Source 
Dissolved Air Floatation Recirculation Pumps at the SW Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. Commissioner Landes asked how long this equipment will last. Mr. 
Lindeman stated approximately 10 years Commissioner Landes moved, 
seconded by Commissioner McCallister to approve the waiver of bid, based on 
the Dissolved Air Floatation Recirculation Pump Units being sole sourced and 
approval of a contract with Fluid Equipment, Inc., for the removal and 
replacement of the SW WWTP Dissolved Air Floatation Recirculation Pump 
Units, in an amount not to exceed $ 32,000. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, 
Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion carried. 

Consideration and Approval of an Ordinance Amendment of School Zone Speed 
Limits. Commissioner McCallister asked if the school district could pay for the 
signs. Interim City Manager Beatty stated that the City could ask for USD 475 to 

ultimately, the City is statutorily responsible for traffic control. Commissioner 
Sands moved, seconded by Commissioner Landes to approve ordinance G-1149 
as amended to correct Washington School Zone location. Ayes: Aska, Landes, 
Ryan, Sands. Nays: McCallister. Motion carried. 

 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Sands stated that the CVB is working to provide information 
regarding the water quality at Milford Lake. Commissioner Sands stated that the 
Sundown Salute event was great. The Geary County Historical Society is holding 
an event with the Monarchs. Commissioner Sands stated that he has received 
call in opposition to the parks closures. 
 
Commissioner McCallister stated that people have also contacted him about the 
parks; there is an effort to cut expenses, but another direction is needed. 
Commissioner McCallister stated that he sees little effort to slow spending on the 
consent agenda. Funds need to be saved for the taxpayers. 
 
Commissioner Aska stated that he made an effort to drive by the parks discussed 
for closure, and there was use at Sertoma Park; If park closure is considered, 
then it needs to be equitable. Commissioner Aska reminded people that there are 
events at the opera House, and 600 people attended the All Star Game. That is a 
great opportunity for the City to promote itself to a wide audience. 
 
Commissioner Landes stated that blight enforcement is needed on trees; 
pedestrians should not need to dodge them. Commissioner Landes stated that 
strategic park placement should be considered. Commissioner Landes thanked 
Sharron and all of the volunteers for their work on Sundown Salute; he saw a lot 
of people coming home to Junction City, which is great. 
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Mayor Ryan stated that he also saw people using the parks considered for 
closure. Mayor Ryan stated that Sundown Salute was great, and the Weather 
was great. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS 
 
Interim City Manager Beatty stated that City staff is holding the line on budgets, 
and a lot of effort goes into keeping costs low for the taxpayers on a daily basis. 
Interim City Manager Beatty stated that plans need to be made for the AUSA 
conference. Expected attendees would include Mayor Ryan, Commissioner 
McCallister, and herself. A date for a budget workshop was set for 6:00 p.m. on 
7-22-2014. The Commission set a meeting date of August 5, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. to 
hold a land bank meeting. 
 
Greg McCaffery reported that the City has been successful in securing a grant to 
cover much of the cost for the K-18 pedestrian pathway. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Landes moved, seconded by Commissioner Aska to adjourn at 
9:15 p.m. Ayes: Aska, Landes, McCallister, Ryan, Sands. Nays: none. Motion 
carried.  
 
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED THIS 5th DAY OF AUGUST AS THE OFFICIAL 
COPY OF THE JUNCTION CITY COMMISSION MINUTES FOR JULY 15, 2014. 
 
   
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk                                                      Michael L. Ryan, Mayor  

70



Backup material for agenda item: 
 

d. Approval of special assessment list to be sent to Geary County for 2013 tax roll 
billing. 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

e. Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution (R-2765) for a Water Watch within 
the City for Voluntary Water Conservation Restrictions 
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August 5, 2014 

 Gregory S. McCaffery, Municipal Service Director 

Cheryl Beatty, Interim City Manager and City Commissioners

Adoption of a Resolution (R-2765) for a Water Watch within the City  Voluntary 
Water Conservation Restrictions  

Objective: Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution (R-2765) for a Water 
Watch within the City for Voluntary Water Conservation Restrictions. 
 
Explanation of Issue: The City Commission adopted a Municipal Water 
Conservation Plan back in June 2013. This plan outlined various goals, 
recommendation for use restriction and short & long term measures on achieving 
water conservation within the City . This plan was 
further developed in order to serve as a means on the reduction of water use within 
the City. Further Chapter 700, Water and Waterworks, Article V, Water 
Conservation, Rationing and Restrictions on Water Supply outlines provisions for 
the issuance of short term measures (water watch, water warning and water 
emergency) for water conservation.  
 
On July 18, 2014, the City Manager issued a Water Watch (Voluntary Use 

conservations. This was done as single day uses have been exceeding 5 Million 
Gallons Per Day (MGD) for 3 consecutive days (see attached summary). This daily 
use has continued and therefore per ordinance, staff is recommending the City 
Commission adopt a formal resolution declaring a Water Watch within the City, until 
such time as all of the requirements for a Water Watch have been met, which 
would then terminate this Water Watch. City staff will further undertake additional 
education and management on water uses and monitoring, as well as, advising the 
public on curtailing water uses during this Water Watch period. 
    
Budget Impact:  None 
 
Alternatives: The City Commission may approve, not approve, modify or table the 
resolution declaring a Water Watch within the City as presented.  

 
Recommendation: City staff recommends the adoption of resolution R-2765, 
declaring a Water Watch within the City, as presented. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Commissioner ___________________ moves to approve adoption of resolution R-
2765, declaring a Water Watch within the City, as presented.   
 
Enclosures:    Resolution Water Watch R-2765 

Summary of Drought/ Emergency Response Stage Goals,  
   Triggers and Actions 
               City of Junction City, Water Use Summary, July 2014 

115



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY 
RESOLUTION R- 2765  

WATER WATCH RESOLUTION 
 
A resolution authorizing the declaration of a water watch, establishing procedures 
and voluntary conservation measures; authorizing the issuance of administrative 
regulations for the City of Junction City, Kansas. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Junction City, Kansas, has established 
requirements for the use of water within the City of Junction City; and, 

 
WHEREAS

Water Supply Ordinance sets in place short term measures (water watch, water 
warning and water emergency) for water conditions uses within the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City through the ordinance has indicated the measures of 
which will be undertaken should certain conditions exists within the use of the 

; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that through monitoring the water 

uses, within the City having exceeded the conditions which would warrant the 
issuance of a water watch condition, within the City; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS, THAT: 
 
1. A Water Watch, asking for voluntary reductions in water use to avoid 

having to implement mandatory restrictions, being implemented. 
 
2. That Educational Actions for a Water Watch be initiated on advising the 

public on available water conservation measures and uses. 
 

3. That Management Actions be monitored regarding water uses by the City. 
 

4. That Regulation Actions of the public be asked to curtail outdoor water use 
and to make efficient use of indoor water. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS THIS 5nd DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
 
            
       Mike Ryan, Mayor  
Attest: 
____________________________  
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

f. Consideration and Approval for the Declaration of various equipment within the 
Department of Public Works as Surplus  
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August 5, 2014 

 Gregory S. McCaffery, Municipal Service Director 

Cheryl Beatty, Interim City Manager and City Commissioners

 Surplus Equipment within the Department of Public Works  

Objective:  Declaration of various equipment within the Department of Public 
Works as surplus so that the items can be sold by Internet auction 
 
Explanation of Issue:  City staff has been working towards realignment of various 
pieces of equipment within the Department of Public Works (DPW). Staff, has 
identified various pieces of rolling equipment which are no long used and/ or 
operational within the DPW.  City staff is therefore requesting City Commission to 
declare these items as surplus so that they can be sold through an Internet auction.   
 
No costs will be incurred for the City for this service, as it will be addressed as part 
of the overall auction services.  Please find attached a copy of the equipment being 
recommended for declaration as surplus by the City Commission. 
 
Budget Impact:  These pieces of equipment will be removed from the C
property insurance. 
 
Alternatives:  The City Commission may approve declaration, deny declaration, or 
postpone declaration of surplus equipment. 

 
Recommendation:  City staff recommends the declaration of the listed equipment 
as surplus to be sold by auction. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Commissioner ___________________ moves to declare the Department of Public 
Works equipment as listed as surplus to be sold by auction. 
 
 
Enclosures: Department of Public Works 2014 Surplus Equipment List 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

g. Consideration of June 2014 ambulance contractual obligation adjustments and 
bad debt adjustments. 
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July 22, 2014 

Kelly Heindel, Administrative Secretary II 

City Commission and City Manager

 

Objective:  Approval of ambulance contractual obligation adjustments and bad debt 
adjustments. 

Explanation of Issue:   Contractual obligations are required write-off adjustments by 
contractual insurance providers such as Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, etc.  Bad debt 
adjustments are accounts in which we have exhausted billing efforts to collect.  After the 
bad debt adjustments, these accounts are forwarded to a collection agency and the Kansas 
Setoff Program.    

Budget Impact:   

 Contractual Obligation Adjustment  $ 33,324.24 

 Bad Debt Adjustment   $ 14,137.91  

Alternatives:  It appears that the City Commission has the following alternatives concerning 
the issues at hand.  The Commission may: 

 1.  Approve ambulance contractual obligation and bad debt adjustments in the 
amounts listed.   

 2.  Disapprove ambulance contractual obligation and bad debt adjustments in the 
amounts listed.   

 3.  Modify the proposal  

 4.  Table the request. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of adjustments as listed 

Enclosures:    
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

h. Consideration of payroll #14 & #15 for the month of July 

  

124



125



126



127



128



Backup material for agenda item: 
 

a. Breastfeeding month proclamation. 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

a. A Public Hearing to consider condemnation of property at 518 W 3rd St and 
approval of Resolution 2763.  
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August 5, 2014 

 Mark Karmann, Code Administrator 

Cheryl Beatty, Interim City Manager and City Commissioners

518 W 3rd St  Resolution 2763 

Objective:  A Public Hearing to consider condemnation of property at 518 W 3rd St 
and approval of Resolution 2763.  
 
Explanation of Issue:  On July 1, 2014 the City Commission approved Resolution 
2760, setting a public hearing date to address the condemnation of the property on 
518 W 3rd St. Resolution 2760 was sent to the property owner of record and was 
published in The Daily Union on July 7, 2014. City Staff is requesting approval of 
Resolution 2763, to allow the property owners 120 days, by law, to repair or 
remove this structure. 120 days will be December 8, 2014. If the owner fails to 
commence the repair or remove the structure within this time, bids will be 
requested for the removal of this structure. 
 
Budget Impact: The project will be funded through Demolition Removal in the 
General Fund. $15,000.00 was budgeted for 2014. Costs will be billed to the 
property owner and will reimburse any charges to this account. 
 
Alternatives:  The Commission may approve, deny, or postpone this item. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2763, giving the 
property owners 120 days, by law, to repair or remove the structure at 518 W 3rd St. 

Suggested Motion:   

Commissioner       moves to approve Resolution 
2763 to give the property owners 120 days, by law, to repair or remove the 
structure at 518 W 3rd St. 

Commissioner       seconded the motion. 

 
Enclosures: Resolution 2763 
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Form of 560.050 Resolution 
 

18783166v1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2763 

A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 560.050 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY 
OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS, FINDING A STRUCTURE TO BE UNSAFE AND 
DANGEROUS AND DIRECTING REPAIR OR REMOVAL OF THE DANGEROUS 
STRUCTURE. 
 
WHEREAS, under the provision of Section 560.040 of the Code of the City of Junction 
City, Kansas, the Enforcing Officer of the City of Junction City, Kansas, has filed with 
the Governing Body of the City a statement in writing stating that a building commonly 
known as 518 W 3rd St., Junction City, Kansas, and legally described as: 
 
 East 11 (Eleven) Feet of Lot 16 (Sixteen) and All of Lot 17 
(Seventeen), Block 50 (Fifty), Junction City, Kansas 
                                 
is unsafe and/or dangerous, and 

WHEREAS, the City has caused a search to be made of the records affecting the title to 
the real estate in the office of the Geary County Register of Deeds and has found that the 
owners and lienholders of record to the above described property are as follows: 
 
None 
 
WHEREAS, the agents, if any, and occupants, if any, of the above described property are 
as follows: 
 
None 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body did by Resolution 2760 designate the 5th day of 
August, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Commission Room of the Junction City Municipal 
Building, 700 North Jefferson, Junction City, Kansas, as the time and place in which the 
owners, their agents, any lienholders of record and any occupants of the building or 
structure could appear and show cause why the building or structure should not be 
condemned and ordered repaired or demolished, and 
 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2760 was published on the 7th day of July, 2014, in the Junction 
City Daily Union, which is the official city newspaper, and 
 
WHEREAS, a copy of Resolution 2760 was mailed by certified mail to each owner, 
agent, lienholder and occupant at his/her or its last known place of residence on the 2nd 
day of July, 2014, which was within three (3) days after publication of said resolution, 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 560.050 of the Code of the City of Junction City, 
Kansas, on the 5th day of August, 2014, the Governing Body of the City of Junction City 
held a public hearing pursuant to Resolution 2760.  The Enforcing Officer, or his 
designated representative, Mark Karmann, appeared in person.  
__________________________ appeared for the owner.  Thereupon, the Enforcing 
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Form of 560.050 Resolution 
 

18783166v1  

Officer, or designated representative, Mark Karmann, presented evidence.  
___________________________ presented evidence for the owner.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS: 
 

1.  The Governing Body finds that the Enforcing Officer and City Clerk have duly 
complied with all the legal requirements in regard notice and hereby approves and finds 
legally sufficient the legal publication and mailed notices required by Section 560.040 of 
the Code of the City of Junction City, Kansas.  
 

2.  The Governing Body finds that the building located on 518 W 3rd St, is an 
unsafe and/or dangerous structure as defined in Section 560.020 of the Code of the City 
of Junction City, Kansas.   
 

3. The Governing Body hereby orders that the owner be given until 
__________________________   to either repair the structure in accordance with 
applicable City Building Codes or to diligently prosecute or complete the removal of the 
structure on the above-described real estate.  The Governing Body further orders that if 
said owner fails to commence the repair or remove of such structure within the time 
stated or fails to diligently prosecute the same until the work is completed, then in that 
event the Enforcing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to cause the structure to be 
repaired or razed and removed without further notice.  The Enforcing Officer may invite 
bids for the removal of such building, negotiate the contract for its removal or cause the 
structure to be removed by city employees and personnel.  In any event, the Enforcing 
Officer shall keep an account of the cost of such work and may sell the salvage from such 
structure and apply the proceeds or any necessary portion thereof to pay for the cost of 
removing said structure and for the cost of making the premises safe and secure and in 
full compliance with the provisions of Chapter 560 of the Code of the City of Junction 
City, Kansas.  The Enforcing Officer shall follow the procedure in regard to this matter as 
set out in Chapter 560 of the Code of the City of Junction City, Kansas. 

 
4. The City Clerk shall cause this Resolution to be published once in the 

official city newspaper and to be mailed by certified mail within three (3) days after its 
publication to each owner, agent, lienholder and occupant at his/her or its last know place 

.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 5TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 

     _____________________________________ 
                    Mike Ryan, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
(SEAL) 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

a. Consideration of the 2013 Audit. 
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  Date of Meeting: August 5, 2014      

From:   Cheryl S. Beatty, Finance Director 

To:   City Commissioners 

Subject:   Presentation and Approval of  2013 Audit    

Objective:  Auditors and staff will present and review the audit for City Commission approval. 

Background:  The State of Kansas requires the City to have an annual audit.  A representative from Mize & 
Houser, our audit firm, will present their findings. 

Explanation of Issue:  Included in the audit is a management letter, which outlines city deficiencies. City 
staff will be responsible for responding to those deficiencies with a plan of action and follow-up to ultimately 
reduce deficiencies that are administratively feasible.   

Budget Impact:  None 

Alternatives:  It appears that the City Commission has the following alternatives concerning the issue at 
hand.  The Commission may approve, disapprove, or table the request. 

Recommendation:  City staff recommends the approval of the City 2013 audit. 
 
Suggested Motion:  Commissioner ___________________ moves to approve of the 2013 city audit as 
presented. Seconded by _______________. 
 
Enclosures:  2013 audit and 2013 audit management letters. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Mayor and City Commissioners 
City of Junction City, Kansas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Junction City, Kansas, as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the “Kansas Municipal 
Accounting and Audit Guide.”  These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.
Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on 
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 
The financial statements referred to above do not include the financial data for the City’s legally separate component 
unit, the Junction City Public Library (the Library). Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require financial data for the component unit to be reported with the financial data of the City’s primary 
government unless the City also issues financial statements for the financial reporting entity that include the financial 
data for its component unit. The City has not issued such reporting entity financial statements.  

The financial statements of the Spirit of ’76 (Spirit) have not been audited, and we were not engaged to audit Spirit’s 
financial statements as part of our audit of the City’s basic financial statements.  Spirit’s financial activities are 
included in the City’s basic financial statements as a discretely presented component unit and represent 100 
percent, 100 percent and 100 percent of the assets, net position, and revenues, respectively, of the City’s aggregate 
discretely presented component units. 

Adverse Opinion 
In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate 
Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information” 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial position of the aggregate 
discretely presented component units of the City of Junction City, Kansas, as of December 31, 2013, or the changes  
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in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Qualified Opinion 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate 
Discretely Presented Component Units and Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information” 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Junction City, Kansas, as of December 31, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unmodified Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of 
Junction City, Kansas, as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, 
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund and capital improvement 
fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis on pages 3 through 9 and the schedule of funding progress on page 47 be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City’s financial statements as a whole.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules, and statistical tables as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying account and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The statistical section has not been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them.  

Certified Public Accountants 
Lawrence, Kansas 
July 7, 2014 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

As management of the City of Junction City, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the additional information that we 
have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages iii of this report and the City’s financial 
statements which begin on page 1. 

Financial Highlights 

 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2013 by $66,502,390 (net assets). 
 The City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $12,426,857. 
 The fund balance for the general fund increased by $2,872,879. 
 The City's total general obligation debt decreased in 2013 by $2.4 million.  

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The 
City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent 
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some 
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 
vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions for the City that are principally supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities 
of the City include general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, and economic 
development. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer, stormwater, Spin City Skating, and 
Sanitation.  We have budgeted for the Spin City fund by absorbing it into the General Fund in 2014.   

Fund financial statements 

A fund is a grouping or related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure 
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into 
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

144



4

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Governmental funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet 
and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation 
to facilitate this comparison between the governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, capital improvement fund, capital 
projects fund and debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental 
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided 
for the various governmental funds that are required to have a budget. This is to demonstrate compliance with the 
annually adopted budget. 

Proprietary funds 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operation, stormwater 
operation, skating rink, sanitation, and the golf course. 

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water 
and sewer fund, and the stormwater fund. 

Notes to the basic financial statements. 

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the required supplementary information. 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the 
case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $66,502,390 at the close of 2013. The City's net assets increased by 
$4,621,061. The governmental activities increased by $3,663,068. The business type activities increased by 
$957,993.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
2012 2013 2012 2013

Current and other assets 69,729,791$        69,906,643$    6,969,332$    8,012,421$    
Capital assets 84,561,446          83,162,878      67,829,974    64,747,751    
Other noncurrent assets 2,049,426 - 234,896 -                  
  Total assets 156,340,663$      153,069,521$  75,034,202$  72,760,172$

Long term liabilities 130,225,677$      124,773,551$   15,598,637$   14,040,193$   
Other liabilities 9,794,394           9,696,964        2,685,502      2,575,405      
Deferred inflows of resources 8,224,275 8,241,190 - -                  
  Total liabilities and deferred inflows 148,244,346$      142,711,705$  18,284,139$  16,615,598$

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
  net of related debt [51,875,398]$       [47,479,333]$   50,626,121$   49,048,348$   
Restricted 49,923,152          47,659,856      -                   -                   
Unrestricted 10,048,563 10,177,293 6,123,942 7,096,226     
  Total net assets 8,096,317$          10,357,816$    56,750,063$  56,144,574$

City of Junction City
Government-Wide Financial Statements

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
infrastructure, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these are not available 
for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

A portion of the City's net assets, $47,659,856, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how 
they may be used.  

2012 2013 2012 2013
Revenues:
Program revenues
  Charges for services 3,693,576$        3,460,191$   12,133,269$ 11,714,071$
  Operating grants and contributions 1,634,111         1,769,732     -                  -                  
  Capital grants and contributions 2,518,706         481,939       -                  -                  
General revenues
  Property taxes 9,937,633         9,470,337     -                  -                  
  Sales tax 10,915,013        11,143,399   -                  -                  
  Franchise taxes 1,833,692         1,882,737     -                  -                  
  Other 2,871,551         2,838,923     408,889       253,963      
Total revenue 33,404,282        31,047,258 12,542,158 11,968,034

Expenses:
  General government 2,972,338         2,818,453     -                  -                  
  Public safety 7,466,537         9,247,065     -                  -                  
  Public works 6,220,145         5,013,275     -                  -                  
  Culture and recreation 1,414,550         1,284,881     -                  -                  
  Economic development 975,615            1,264,637     -                  -                  
  Public health and sanitation 2,034,862         2,053,932     -                  -                  
  Interest on long-term debt 6,771,428         6,568,899     -                  -                  
  Payments on other obilgations 1,855,634         655,548       -                  -                  
  Water and sewer -                       -                  7,207,927    7,740,690     
  Stormwater -                       -                  462,200       498,018       
  Spin City skating -                       -                  257,592       164,748       
  Golf -                       -                  -                  -                  
  Sanitation -                       -                  1,268,602    1,084,085    
Total expenses 29,711,109        28,906,690 9,196,321    9,487,541    

Change in net assets before
  transfers 3,693,173         2,140,568     3,345,837    2,480,493     

Transfers 1,452,824         1,522,500     [1,452,824] [1,522,500]   

Change in net assets 5,145,997         3,663,068     1,893,013    957,993      

Net assets, beginning of year
  as previously stated 3,730,436         8,096,317     54,062,353   56,750,063

Prior period adjustment [780,116]           [1,401,569]    794,697       [1,563,482]   

Net assets, beginning of year
  restated 2,950,320 6,694,748     54,857,050 55,186,581

Net assets, end of year 8,096,317$        10,357,816$ 56,750,063$ 56,144,574$

Business-type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

City of Junction City
Changes in Net Assets
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- related legal 
requirements.

Governmental funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of 
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, 
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at 
the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the main operating fund of the City. At the end of 2013, unassigned fund balance of the general 
fund was $5,186,893. 

Proprietary funds 

The City's proprietary funds financial statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. The change in net assets for the proprietary funds includes both the current 
year activity and restatement of prior year fund balance. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of 2013 amounted to $5,793,061, the Storm Water 
Fund's unrestricted net assets were $748,907 and the non major proprietary fund's were $554,258. The non major 
proprietary funds are the Spin City Skating Rink in the amount of [$0], and Sanitation Fund in the amount of 
$567,435. The total change in net assets from 2012 to 2013 for the water and sewer fund was an increase of 
$867,960.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City continues to be impacted by Fort Riley, the adjacent military installation, home of the First Division of the 
Big Red One, which reached “full nest” in 2013.  However, the fort threatens to be decreased by federal 
sequestration and reduction in force by one brigade over the next three to four years. 

The City’s revenues have remained stable for the last three years. Sales tax revenue in 2013 was $7,346,931. 
Franchise fee revenues remain stable, along with the tax mill levy. 

Residential construction grew rapidly from 2006 to 2009, and from 2010 to 2012, single family new home 
construction averaged 116 per year, in addition to 19 multiplex projects.  In 2013, single family home construction 
dropped to 46 and only one duplex project.  However, residential remodel projects increased from an average of 280 
projects per year to 302 in 2013.  The total number of building permits issued by the City in 2013 was 994 compared 
to a 3 year average of 1,008. 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration  

Capital Assets 

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2013, 
amounts to $147,910,629 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes construction 
in progress, land, buildings, streets, water and sewer lines, storm sewers, equipment and improvements. See 
detailed capital asset information in note 5 of the notes to these financial statements. 

2012 2013 2012 2013
Construction in Progress -$                32,941$       -$             -$             
Land 13,732,739   13,900,622   610,446       442,563       
Buildings 19,150,528   20,449,171   26,517,783   25,219,140   
Streets 96,209,949   96,209,949   75,283,752   75,440,539   
Equipment and Improvements 9,531,884     10,425,155   9,085,444     9,120,158     
Less: Accumulated Depreciation [54,063,654] [57,854,960] [43,667,451] [45,474,649]
Total capital assets, net 84,561,446$ 83,162,878$ 67,829,974$ 64,747,751$

Governmental Activities

City of Junction City
Capital Assets

Business-type Activities

At the end of 2013, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $122,338,356 backed by full faith and credit of the 
city, no temporary notes, and $19,099,813 of State of Kansas Revolving Loan fund debt.   $6,316,556 of that State 
revolving fund debt represents bonds secured solely by water and sewer revenue sources.  In 2010 and 2011 the 
City experienced a cash flow crisis which had to be addressed to make the second half bond payments in 2012.  
The crisis was averted by the implementation of several immediate cutbacks as well as significant increases in 
revenues.  Ultimately, a Fiscal Transformation Plan was developed to ensure complete recovery.  Some of the 
actions taken to respond and recover included the following: 

1. Debt restructuring to improve cash flow position. 
2. Increase in property taxes by 2.068 mills in 2011. 
3. Requested and received by a vote of the citizens, a one cent sales tax restricted for debt payments. 
4. Worked with Standards & Poors to retain an A bond rating. 
5. Multiple community meetings and forums to engage public in discussions of organizational structure, 

prioritization of services, and education. 
6. Kept open communications with Fort Riley, which is the cities’ largest employer. 
7. Worked with legislative delegations to extend debt limit revisions for Junction City and was successful in 

2012 legislature.  We also requested assistance from congressional delegates to lessen the local burden 
created by Fort Riley. 

8. A complete review of all contract services was done to ensure contracts were viable and actions were taken 
to revise or cancel if contracts were found insufficient.  This has led to cancellation of contract for services 
for operating public works through a private contractor.  Contract errors that were found have been 
corrected. 

9. A complete city staff organization plan was analyzed and changes made to develop efficiencies and 
eliminated services no longer in demand or deemed a high priority. 

10. Administration and franchise fees were established for all utility funds. 
11. The policy on Special Assessment practices was changed to ensure that a project developer is responsible 

for the cost of development.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 

12. Economic development debt was halted and policy changes to be changed for future projects.  Spirit of ’76 
transactions were reorganized and controls put in place to reduce city liability. 

13. All organizational expenditures were analyzed and limited to operational priorities.  All capital projects were 
deferred.

14. The City accounting and fund management practices revised.  A new Fiscal Policy was adopted and 
multiple checks and balances implemented.  The City hired a new audit firm and continues to work with 
auditors to improve accounting system to meet GAAP and GASB standards. 

15. All schedules debt payments were made in 2011, 2012, and 2013, and the Cities’ year end cash balance in 
2013 was $17,069,620. 

More detailed information about the City’s long-term debt is presented in Note 10 to the basic financial statements. 

Outstanding Debt, General Obligation, Revenue and State of Kansas Revolving Loans

2012 2013 2012 2013
General obligation bonds 59,026,031$    57,853,046$    9,763,821$   8,869,586$   
Special assessment debt 58,529,603     55,615,724     -                  -                  
State of KS Revolving Loans 13,661,758     12,783,257     6,785,481     6,316,556     
Certificate of Participation 3,285,000       2,935,000       -                  -                  
Notes Payable 567,814          487,031          -                  -                  
Capital Lease Obligations 1,366,638       968,153          654,551        513,261       
Total 136,436,844$  130,642,211$  17,203,853$  15,699,403$

Business-type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

City of Junction City
Outstanding Debt

General Obligation, Revenue and State of Kansas Revolving Loans

The City's total debt decreased by a net amount of $7,299,083 during 2013.  

The State of Kansas statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue up to 30 
percent of its total assessed valuation. However, the City of Junction City sought and received a waiver to enable a 
debt limit up to 40 percent. Certain types of debt do not count in the State of Kansas calculation. Exemptions exist 
for water and sewer infrastructure projects. The current remaining statutory debt capacity for the City as of 
December 31, 2013, is $1,182,217. 

Requests for information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in 
the City's finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the City Manager’s Office, 700 N. Jefferson, Junction City, Kansas or by email at 
Cheryl.beatty@jcks.com 
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Component
Unit

Total Total Total
 Governmental Business-type Primary Spirit of '76
 Activities Activities Government (unaudited)

ASSETS
  Current assets:
    Cash and investments 9,942,458$           7,127,162$         17,069,620$    3,351$             
    Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
      Accounts 911,672                1,415,294           2,326,966        1,909,173        
      Taxes 10,273,687           -                          10,273,687      -                       
      Special assessments 48,515,428           -                          48,515,428      -                       
      Notes -                            -                          -                       -                       
    Internal balances 260,035                [530,035]             [270,000]          -                       
    Inventory 3,363                    -                          3,363               -                       
    Property investment held for sale - - - 13,130,628
  Total current assets 69,906,643 8,012,421 77,919,064 15,043,152

  Noncurrent assets:
    Capital assets, nondepreciable
     Land 13,900,622           442,563              14,343,185      -                       
     Construction in progress 32,941 -                          32,941             -                       
    Capital assets, depreciable 127,084,275         109,779,837       236,864,112    -                       
     Less: Accumulated depreciation [57,854,960] [45,474,649] [103,329,609] -
  Total noncurrent assets 83,162,878 64,747,751 147,910,629 -

Total assets 153,069,521$  72,760,172$  225,829,693$  15,043,152$

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
 Liabilities
  Current liabilities:
    Accounts payable 408,740$              154,916$            563,656$         -$                     
    Accrued payroll 314,428                24,587                339,015           -
    Interest payable 1,807,759             181,498              1,989,257        -                       
    Meter deposits payable -                            505,653              505,653           -                       
    Current portion of compensated absences payable 491,407                40,015                531,422           -                       
    Current portion of loans payable 905,873                483,882              1,389,755        -                       
    Current portion of notes payable 84,321                  -                          84,321             -                       
    Current portion of general obligation bonds payable 2,885,449             1,042,989           3,928,438        -                       
    Current portion of special assessments bonds payable 2,565,667             -                          2,565,667        -                       
    Current portion of certificate of participation 365,000                -                          365,000           -                       
    Current portion of capital lease payable 359,727 141,865 501,592 -
  Total current liabilities 10,188,371 2,575,405 12,763,776 -

  Noncurrent liabilities:
    Compensated absences payable 605,268                9,526                  614,794           -                       
    Net OPEB Obligation 200,702                -                          200,702           -                       
    Loans payable 11,877,384 5,832,674           17,710,058      5,409,502        
    Notes payable 402,710 -                          402,710           -                       
    General obligation bonds payable 54,967,597 7,826,597           62,794,194      -                       
    Special assessments bonds payable 53,050,057 -                          53,050,057      -                       
    Certificates of participation payable 2,570,000 -                          2,570,000        -                       
    Capital lease payable 608,426 371,396 979,822 -
  Total non-current liabilities 124,282,144 14,040,193 138,322,337 5,409,502

Total liabilities 134,470,515 16,615,598 151,086,113 5,409,502

 Deferred Inflows of Resources
    Unavailable revenue - property taxes 8,241,190 - 8,241,190 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 8,241,190 - 8,241,190 -

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 142,711,705$  16,615,598$  159,327,303$  5,409,502$

Net Position
    Invested in capital assets, net of related debt [47,479,333]$        49,048,348$       1,569,015$      -$                     
    Restricted for:    
      Capital projects -                            -                          -                       -                       
      Revolving funds 715,491                -                          715,491           -                       
      Equipment 236,696                -                          236,696           -                       
      Debt service 46,707,669           -                          46,707,669      -                       
    Unrestricted 10,177,293 7,096,226 17,273,519 9,633,650

Total net position 10,357,816$  56,144,574$  66,502,390$  9,633,650$

Primary Government

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
10
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Component Unit
 Operating Capital Total Total  

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Spirit of '76
 Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total (Unaudited)
Governmental activities:
      General government 2,818,453$    2,133,342$   822,259$     -$                  137,148$         -$                    137,148$         -$                         
      Public safety 9,247,065      1,056,984     318,775       -                    [7,871,306]       -                      [7,871,306]       -                           
      Public works 5,013,275 269,865        628,698       481,939        [3,632,773]       -                      [3,632,773]       -                           
      Culture and recreation 1,284,881      -                    -                    -                    [1,284,881]       -                      [1,284,881]       -                           
      Economic development 1,264,637      -                    -                    -                    [1,264,637]       -                      [1,264,637]       -                           
      Public health and sanitation 2,053,932 -                    -                    -                    [2,053,932]       -                      [2,053,932]       -                           
      Payments on other obligations (see note) 655,548 -                    -                    -                    [655,548]          -                      [655,548]          -                           
      Interest on long-term debt 6,568,899 - - - [6,568,899] - [6,568,899] -

Total governmental activities 28,906,690 3,460,191 1,769,732 481,939 [23,194,828] - [23,194,828] -

Business-type activities:
      Water and Sewer 7,740,690      9,356,857     -                    -                    -                       1,616,167       1,616,167        -                           
      Stormwater 498,018         780,995        -                    -                    -                       282,977          282,977           -                           
      Spin City 164,748         121,183        -                    -                    -                       [43,565]           [43,565]            -                           
      Sanitation 1,084,085 1,455,036 - - - 370,951 370,951 -

Total business-type activities 9,487,541 11,714,071 - - - 2,226,530 2,226,530 -

Total primary government 38,394,231$  15,174,262$ 1,769,732$  481,939$ [23,194,828] 2,226,530 [20,968,298] -

Component units:
      Public Library -$                   -$                  -$                  -$                  -                       -                      -                       -                           
      Spirit of '76 189,256 476,925 - 625,527 - - - 913,196

Total component units 189,256$  476,925$  -$  625,527$ - - - 913,196

General Revenues:
Property tax 9,470,337        -                      9,470,337        -                           
Sales tax 11,143,399      -                      11,143,399      -                           
Franchise tax 1,882,737        -                      1,882,737        -                           
Payments in lieu of tax 14,137             -                      14,137             -                           
Use of money or property 481,805           -                      481,805           5                          
Miscellaneous 2,342,981        253,963          2,596,944        -                           

Transfers, net 1,522,500 [1,522,500] - -

Subtotal general revenues 26,857,896 [1,268,537] 25,589,359 5

Change in net position 3,663,068 957,993 4,621,061 913,201

Net position - beginning 8,096,317        56,750,063     64,846,380      8,720,449            

Prior period adjustment [1,401,569] [1,563,482] [2,965,051] -

Net position - beginning, restated 6,694,748 55,186,581 61,881,329 8,720,449

Net position - ending 10,357,816$  56,144,574$  66,502,390$  9,633,650$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Changes in Net Assets
Program Revenues

Net [Expenses] Revenue and

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
11
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Other Total
 Capital Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
 General Improvement Projects Service Funds Funds

ASSETS
  Cash and investments 3,136,854$    995,645$       -$                   2,949,454$    2,860,505$    9,942,458$
  Receivables (net)
      Accounts 646,721         -                     -                     3,022             261,929         911,672         
      Taxes 3,897,331      -                     -                     4,994,856      1,381,500      10,273,687
      Special assessments -                     -                     -                     48,515,428    -                     48,515,428
  Inventory 3,363             -                     -                     -                     -                     3,363             
  Due from other funds - - - 303,625 363,144 666,769

Total assets 7,684,269$  995,645$  -$  56,766,385$  4,867,078$  70,313,377$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
 Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 239,661$       1,490$           -$                   29,643$         79,493$         350,287$       
  Retainage payable 58,453           -                     -                     -                     -                     58,453           
  Due to other funds 20,000           386,734         -                     -                     -                     406,734         
  Accrued liabilities 314,428 - - - - 314,428
Total liabilities 632,542 388,224 - 29,643 79,493 1,129,902

 Deferred inflows of resources:
  Unavailable revenue - property taxes 1,864,834      -                     -                     4,994,856      1,381,500      8,241,190
  Unavailable revenue - special assessments - - - 48,515,428 - 48,515,428
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,864,834 - - 53,510,284 1,381,500 56,756,618

 Fund balance:
Restricted -                     -                     -                     3,226,458      3,295,796      6,522,254
Committed -                     607,421         -                     -                     110,289         717,710         
Unassigned 5,186,893 - - - - 5,186,893

Total fund balances 5,186,893 607,421 - 3,226,458 3,406,085 12,426,857

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 Resources and fund balances 7,684,269$  995,645$  -$  56,766,385$  4,867,078$  70,313,377$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
12
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Total Governmental Fund Balances 12,426,857$

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
 resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

        The cost of capital assets is 141,017,838
        Accumulated depreciation is [57,854,960] 83,162,878    

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
       and therefore are deferred in the funds. 48,515,428    

The following liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period
 and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

       Compensated absences [1,096,675]     
       Net OPEB obligation [200,702]        
       Notes payable [487,031]        
       Loans payable [12,783,257]   
       General obligation bonds payable [57,853,046]   
       Special assessment bonds payable [55,615,724]   
       Certificates of participation payable [2,935,000]     
       Capital lease payable [968,153]        
       Accrued interest on the bonds [1,807,759] [133,747,347]

Net Position of Governmental Activities 10,357,816$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
13
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Other Total
Capital Capital Debt Governmental Governmental

General Improvements Projects Service Funds Funds
REVENUES  
  Taxes
     Property 1,723,081$    32,928$         -$                   6,052,018$    1,662,310$    9,470,337$    
     Sales 7,346,931      -                     -                     3,796,468      -                     11,143,399    
     Franchise 1,882,737      -                     -                     -                     -                     1,882,737      
     Payment in lieu 14,137           -                     -                     -                     -                     14,137           
  Charges for services 2,133,342      -                     -                     -                     -                     2,133,342      
  Intergovernmental 822,259         -                     -                     -                     947,473         1,769,732      
  Licenses and permits 269,865         -                     -                     -                     -                     269,865         
  Fines and fees 1,056,984      -                     -                     -                     -                     1,056,984      
  Special assessments -                     -                     -                     2,304,567      -                     2,304,567      
  Use of money and property 4,469             -                     -                     476,930         406                481,805         
  Miscellaneous 330,297 518,155 - 210,000 1,285,325 2,343,777

Total revenues 15,584,102 551,083 - 12,839,983 3,895,514 32,870,682

EXPENDITURES
Current
  General government 1,427,165      -                     -                     -                     1,014,031      2,441,196      
  Public safety 7,872,044      -                     -                     -                     934,750         8,806,794      
  Public works 2,182,152      74,955           -                     -                     111,224         2,368,331      
  Public health and sanitation 2,053,932      -                     -                     -                     -                     2,053,932      
  Culture and recreation 1,547,123      -                     -                     -                     6,072             1,553,195      
  Economic development 657,536         -                     -                     426,750         180,351         1,264,637      
  Miscellaneous 109,107         -                     -                     249,702         -                     358,809
  Debt service
    Principal -                     -                     -                     13,283,026    295,000         13,578,026    
    Interest and other charges 429,853         -                     -                     6,152,877 103,669         6,686,399      
    Payments on contractual obligations -                     -                     -                     655,548         -                     655,548         
  Capital outlay - - - - 1,424 1,424

Total expenditures 16,278,912 74,955 - 20,767,903 2,646,521 39,768,291

Excess [deficiency] of revenues 
over [under] expenditures [694,810] 476,128 - [7,927,920] 1,248,993 [6,897,609]

Other financing sources [uses]
    Bond proceeds -                     -                     -                     8,050,000      -                     8,050,000      
    Bond premium -                     -                     -                     197,988         -                     197,988         
    Transfers in 1,072,918      -                     -                     450,000         -                     1,522,918      
    Transfers [out] - - - - [418] [418]
Total other financing sources [uses] 1,072,918 - - 8,697,988 [418] 9,770,488

Net change in fund balance 378,108 476,128 - 770,068 1,248,575 2,872,879

Fund balance - Beginning of year 4,808,908      131,293         640,090         2,356,425      2,227,824      10,164,540    

Prior period adjustment [123] - [640,090] 99,965 [70,314] [610,562]

Fund balance - Beginning of year, restated 4,808,785 131,293 - 2,456,390 2,157,510 9,553,978

Fund balance - End of year 5,186,893$  607,421$  -$  3,226,458$  3,406,085$  12,426,857$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 2,872,879$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
 statement of activities are different because

Capital outlays to purchase or build assets are reported in governmental funds
 as expenditures.  However, for governmental activities those costs are shown
 in the statement of net position and allocated over their estimated useful lives
 as annual depreciation expenses in the statement of activities.  This is the 
 amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the period.
        Capital outlays 952,508
        Loss on sale of assets [26,294]          
        Depreciation expense [3,583,201] [2,656,987]        

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount
 reported in the governmental funds because interest is recorded as an 
 expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current 
 financial resources.  In the statement of activities, however, interest expense 
 is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.  This is 
 the amount by which interest decreased. 126,792            

Revenues for long term special assessment receivables are recorded in the statement  
 of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not recorded in the 
 governmental funds. [1,822,628]        

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, such as compensated
 absences and other post employment benefits, do not require the use of current 
 financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
 governmental funds.
        Compensated absences [605,269]           
        Other post employment benefits [46,353]             

Bond and temporary note proceeds are other financing sources in the governmental
 funds, but they increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and do
 not affect the statement of activities.  Also, governmental funds report the effect
 of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first
 issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement
 of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
 treatment of long-term debt and related items.
        Loan proceeds [796]                   
        Bond proceeds [8,050,000]        
        Bond premium [197,988]           
        Capitalized bond issuance costs and issuance premiums [13,875]             
        Capital lease proceeds [88,328]             

Repayment of bond principal and bond issuance costs is an expenditure
 in the governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement 
 of net position and does not affect the statement of activities.
        General obligation debt 9,436,442         
        Special assessment debt 2,913,879         
        Notes 80,782              
        Loans 877,705            
        Capital leases 486,813            
        Certificates of participation 350,000

Changes In Net Position of Governmental Activities 3,663,068$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE WITH THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
  Taxes 10,921,166$  10,232,251$  10,232,251$  688,915$       
  Charges for services 2,022,601      2,338,600      2,338,600      [315,999]        
  Intergovernmental 822,259         1,055,000      1,055,000      [232,741]        
  Licenses and permits 269,865         360,000         360,000         [90,135]          
  Fines and fees 1,056,984      900,000         900,000         156,984         
  Use of money and property 4,469             20,000           20,000           [15,531]          
  Miscellaneous 330,297 205,000 205,000 125,297

Total revenues 15,427,641 15,110,851 15,110,851 316,790

Expenditures
City manager 1,049,681      774,475         774,475         [275,206]        
Building maintenance 206,756         172,184         172,184         [34,572]          
Information systems 170,568         203,970         203,970         33,402           
Administrative services 160                -                     -                     [160]               
Airport 79,886           125,035         125,035         45,149           
Court 403,166         417,556         417,556         14,390           
Ambulance 2,053,932      2,137,538      2,137,538      83,606           
Animal shelter 90,601           -                     -                     [90,601]          
Codes enforcement 553,772         258,972         258,972         [294,800]        
County inspection 3,568             -                     -                     [3,568]            
Police 5,089,062      5,402,135      5,402,135      313,073         
Fire 2,289,214      2,436,935      2,436,935      147,721         
Parks 590,984         727,457         727,457         136,473         
Recreation 643,573         764,368         764,368         120,795         
Spin city 269                -                     -                     [269]               
Streets 2,102,266      2,183,779      2,183,779      81,513           
Engineering 100,196         103,673         103,673         3,477             
Opera House 118,477         276,923         276,923         158,446         
Swimming pools 193,740         215,725         215,725         21,985           
Misc 109,107         348,500         348,500         239,393
Debt principal -                     606,965         606,965         606,965         
Interest 429,853 - - [429,853]

Total expenditures 16,278,831 17,156,190 17,156,190 877,359

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
  over [under] expenditures [851,190] [2,045,339] [2,045,339] 1,194,149

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

GENERAL FUND (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfer in 1,072,918$  1,002,500$  1,002,500$  70,418$

Total other financing sources [uses] 1,072,918 1,002,500 1,002,500 70,418

Net change in fund balance 221,728 [1,042,839]$  [1,042,839]$  1,264,567$

Budgetary basis
  Fund balance, beginning 2,282,707

  Prior period adjustment [123]

  Fund balance, beginning, restated 2,282,584

Budgetary basis fund balance, ending 2,504,312

GAAP Adjustments:
  Accounts Receivable 646,721         
  Taxes Receivable 3,897,331
  Inventory 3,363             
  Deferred Revenue [1,864,834]

Fund balance, ending 5,186,893$

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
   Taxes 32,928$         -$                   -$                   32,928$         
   Miscellaneous 518,155 - - 518,155

Total revenues 551,083 - - 551,083

Expenditures
  Contractual 74,955 78,838 78,838 3,883

Total expenditures 74,955 78,838 78,838 3,883

Net change in fund balances 476,128         [78,838]          [78,838]          554,966         

Fund balance, beginning 131,293 - - 131,293

Fund balance, ending 607,421$  [78,838]$  [78,838]$  686,259$

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise

ASSETS Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds
  Current assets:
    Cash and investments 5,984,842$   663,015$      479,305$      7,127,162$   
    Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
      Accounts 1,122,711 148,326 144,257 1,415,294
  Total current assets 7,107,553 811,341 623,562 8,542,456

  Noncurrent assets:
  Capital assets:
      Nondepreciable capital assets:
        Land 442,563        -                     -                     442,563        
      Depreciable capital assets:
        Capital assets 96,649,134   12,140,456   990,247        109,779,837
       Less: accumulated depreciation [43,748,190] [1,186,005] [540,454] [45,474,649]

  Total noncurrent assets 53,343,507 10,954,451 449,793 64,747,751

Total assets 60,451,060$ 11,765,792$ 1,073,355$  73,290,207$

Liabilities:
  Current liabilities:
    Accounts payable 39,445$        62,434$        53,037$        154,916$      
    Accrued payroll 17,846          -                     6,741            24,587          
    Interest payable 181,498        -                     -                     181,498        
    Meter deposits payable 505,653        -                     -                     505,653        
    Due to other funds 530,035        -                     -                     530,035        
    Current portion of compensated absences payable 40,015          -                     -                     40,015          
    Current portion of loans payable 483,882        -                     -                     483,882        
    Current portion of capital lease payable 21,774          -                     120,091        141,865        
    Current portion of general obligation bonds payable 1,042,989 - - 1,042,989
  Total current liabilities 2,863,137 62,434 179,869 3,105,440

  Noncurrent liabilities:
    Compensated absences payable -                     -                     9,526            9,526            
    Loans payable 5,832,674     -                     -                     5,832,674     
    Capital lease payable 54,871          -                     316,525        371,396        
    General obligation bonds payable 7,826,597 - - 7,826,597
  Total noncurrent liabilities 13,714,142 - 326,051 14,040,193

Total liabilities 16,577,279$ 62,434$  505,920$  17,145,633$

Net Position
    Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,080,720$ 10,954,451$ 13,177$        49,048,348$
    Unrestricted 5,793,061 748,907 554,258 7,096,226

Total net position 43,873,781$ 11,703,358$ 567,435$  56,144,574$

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise

Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds
 Operating revenue

  Charges for services 9,356,857$         780,995$      1,576,219$   11,714,071$
  Miscellaneous 221,793 - 32,170 253,963
     Total operating revenues 9,578,650 780,995 1,608,389 11,968,034

Operating expenses
Personnel services 1,161,270           77,812          446,763        1,685,845
Contractual services 3,821,721           180,532        545,270        4,547,523
Commodities 513,524              -                     158,126        671,650        
Depreciation and amortization 1,663,967 239,674 98,674 2,002,315
   Total operating expense 7,160,482 498,018 1,248,833 8,907,333

Operating income [loss] 2,418,168 282,977 359,556 3,060,701

Nonoperating revenues [expenses]
Interest expense [580,208] - - [580,208]

Total nonoperating revenues [expenses] [580,208] - - [580,208]

Income [loss] before transfers 1,837,960 282,977 359,556 2,480,493

Transfers from [to] other funds
Transfers [out] [970,000] [482,500] [70,000] [1,522,500]

Total transfers [970,000] [482,500] [70,000] [1,522,500]

Change in net position 867,960 [199,523] 289,556 957,993

Net position, beginning 43,354,471         11,902,881   1,492,711     56,750,063

Prior period adjustment [348,650] - [1,214,832] [1,563,482]

Net position, beginning, restated 43,005,821 11,902,881 277,879 55,186,581

Net position, ending 43,873,781$  11,703,358$ 567,435$  56,144,574$

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise

Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers and users 9,353,220$   784,061$    1,610,539$   11,747,820$     
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services [4,639,749]     [118,098]      [704,892]        [5,462,739]        
Cash paid to employees [1,132,273]     [77,812]        [438,530]        [1,648,615]        
Other operating receipts 221,793 - 32,170 253,963

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities 3,802,991 588,151 499,287 4,890,429

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase and construction of capital assets [29,765]          [156,786]      [4,950]            [191,501]           
Principal payments - capital lease [21,200]          -                  [120,091]        [141,291]           
Principal payments - general obligation bonds [995,000]        -                  -                    [995,000]           
Interest payments [594,682]        -                  -                    [594,682]           
Principal payments - loans payable [468,925] - - [468,925]

Net cash provided by [used in] capital
 and related financing activities [2,109,572] [156,786] [125,041] [2,391,399]

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
   Change in due to/from other funds 45,375          -                  [70,000]          [24,625]             
   Transfers [out] [970,000] [482,500] - [1,452,500]
Net cash provided by [used in] noncapital
 financing activities [924,625] [482,500] [70,000] [1,477,125]

Net increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalent 768,794        [51,135]        304,246        1,021,905         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 5,216,048 714,150 175,059 6,105,257

Cash and cash equivalents, ending 5,984,842$  663,015$  479,305$  7,127,162$

Enterprise Funds

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Business-Type Activities:

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise

Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds

Reconciliation of operating [loss] income to net cash
  provided by [used in] operating activities
Operating income [loss] 2,418,168$    282,977$       359,556         3,060,701$    

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities
Depreciation expense 1,663,967      239,674         98,674           2,002,315      
[Increase] decrease in accounts receivable [60,356]          3,066             34,320           [22,970]          
Increase [decrease] in meter deposits payable 56,719           -                     -                     56,719           
Increase [decrease] in accounts payable [304,504]        62,434           [1,496]            [243,566]        
Increase [decrease] in accrued payroll 5,047             -                     [1,293]            3,754             
Increase [decrease] in accrued compensated absences 23,950 - 9,526 33,476

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities 3,802,991$  588,151$  499,287$  4,890,429$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency
Funds

Assets
Cash 382,241$       
Accounts receivable 3,670             
Due from other funds 270,000

Total assets 655,911$

Liabilities
    Due to others 655,911$

Total liabilities 655,911$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Junction City, Kansas (the City) was incorporated in 1859 and became a City of the first class on 
January 1, 1962.  The City operates under a City Commission - Manager form of government.  The 
accompanying basic financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component unit, The 
Spirit of ’76, an entity for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.  The discretely presented 
component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements (see note below 
for descriptions) to emphasize that the Spirit of ’76 is legally separate from the City. The Junction City Public 
Library is also a component unit of the City, however, those financial statements have not been presented. 

Discretely Presented Component Units.  The Public Library (the Library) is operated by a Library Board 
which is appointed by the City Commission.  The City levies and collects a special library tax to subsidize the 
Library's operations.  The Library's mill levy can be capped by charter ordinance of the City Commission.  Bond 
issuances must also be approved by the City.  The Library has not been presented in these audited financial 
statements.  Separately issued financial statements for the Library are not available. 

The Spirit of '76, a Kansas not-for-profit 501(c)(4) corporation, is operated by an eleven member Board 
appointed by the Mayor and the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners.  The City has issued several 
series of Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRB's) for economic development projects within the City for which the Spirit 
of '76 is the tenant under separate financing leases.  In relation to these IRB's the City and the Spirit of '76 have 
entered into economic development grant agreements whereby the City agrees to provide Spirit with an 
economic development grant in an amount necessary for the Spirit of '76 to make basic rental payments 
required by the leases.  The Spirit of '76 is presented as a governmental fund type.  Separately issued financial 
statements for the Spirit of '76 are not available. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements  

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all activities of the primary government and its component units.  Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from the legally separate component units for which the primary government 
is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Major individual 
governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation  

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses arc recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 167
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are generally considered to be available when they are collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. A 90-day availability period is used for 
revenue recognition for all governmental funds revenues except property taxes. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well 
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment 
is due. 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual 
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two 
types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any 
amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In 
the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure 
to comply with prescribed requirements.  These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or 
earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, interest associated with the current fiscal period, and certain state 
and federal grants and entitlements are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized 
as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the 
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other 
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. While 
property taxes receivable are shown on the balance sheet as current assets of the City, they are not recognized 
as revenue at year end because statutory provisions prohibit their use until the year for which they were raised 
and budgeted. Instead, they are offset by deferred revenue accounts. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. This fund accounts for the general 
operating transactions of the City including public safety, public works, parks, recreation, and 
administration. 

The capital improvement fund was established to provide a financing mechanism for the repair, restoration 
and rehabilitation of existing public facilities. 

The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major facilities other than those 
financed by the enterprise funds. 

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and 
interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The water/sewer fund accounts for the operation and maintenance activities of the City's water distribution 
and wastewater collection and treatment systems. 

The stormwater fund accounts for the operation and maintenance activities of the City's stormwater collection 
and treatment systems. 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)  

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water/sewer function and various 
other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues 
reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including 
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water/sewer and 
stormwater funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the water/sewer and 
stormwater funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Pooled Cash and Investments  

Cash and investment of the individual funds are combined to form a pool that is managed by the Director of 
Finance. Each fund's equity in the pool is included in "deposits and investments" in the financial statements. 
These pooled deposits and investments consist of operating accounts and investments in the State of Kansas 
Municipal Investment Pool (MIP), which is overseen by the State of Kansas. The fair value of the City's position 
in the MIP is the same as the pool value of the shares. Investment earnings, including interest income, are 
allocated to the funds required to accumulate interest; other investment earnings are allocated based on 
management discretion. If a fund is not required to account for its own earnings by law or regulation, the 
earnings are allocated to the General Fund.  

Cash Flows Statement 

For purposes of the cash flows statement, the City considers deposits and highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as "internal balances." 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Receivables and Payables (Continued) 

All trade accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Management records a trade 
accounts receivable allowance based on percentages of collection estimated from the aging of the accounts 
receivable.  

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered 
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in 
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.  

Property Taxes  

In accordance with governing state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are a revenue 
source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year.  Taxes are levied on November 1 of each year, 
due and payable November 30, delinquent after December 20, and the following September become a lien on 
the property.  The County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within Geary County.   

Property owners have the option of paying one half or the full amount of the taxes levied on or before 
December 20 during the year levied with the balance to be paid on or before May 10 of the next year.  State 
statutes prohibit the County Treasurer from distributing the taxes collected in the year levied prior to January 
1 of the next year.  Consequently, for revenue recognition purposes, taxes levied during the current year are 
not available until the ensuing year.  At November 1, such taxes are due and are recorded as taxes 
receivable, net of anticipated delinquencies, with a corresponding amount recorded as deferred revenue on 
the balance sheet of the appropriate funds.  This amount is also reported as unearned revenue on the 
Statement of Net Position. 

Kansas statutes require projects financed in part by special assessments to be paid in installments must be 
financed through the issuance of general obligation bonds or temporary notes which are secured by the full faith 
and credit of the City.  Special assessments paid prior to the issuance of general obligation bonds are recorded 
as revenue in the appropriate capital project.  Special assessments received after the issuance of general 
obligation bonds are recorded as revenue in the Debt Service Fund.  Further, Kansas statutes require levying 
additional general and ad valorem property taxes in the City’s Debt Service Fund to finance delinquent special 
assessments receivable.  Accordingly, special assessments receivable are accounted for within the City’s Debt 
Service Fund.  Special assessments are levied over a 10-year period, and annual installments are due and 
payable with annual ad valorem property taxes.  The City may foreclose liens against property benefited by 
special assessments when delinquent assessments are two years in arrears. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and 
similar items) and construction in progress are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an 
initial individual cost of more than $100 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the 
life of the asset are not capitalized. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets (Continued) 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred 
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized 
value of the assets constructed. 

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives, 

Buildings and systems 40 - 50 years 
Improvements 20 - 40 years 
Machinery and equipment 5 - 10 years 
Infrastructure 40 - 75 years 

Compensated Absences  

Under the terms of the City's personnel policy, City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying 
amounts. Employees are allowed to accumulate vacation leave not to exceed 240 hours. Fire department 
employees may accumulate up to 480 hours. The policy prohibits payment for vacation in lieu of time off. Upon 
termination or retirement, vacation is paid to employees up to the maximum accumulations noted above. 

All regular full-time employees employed by the City on or before December 31, 1994 who have an accumulation 
of more than 1,040 sick leave hours, or more than 1,452 sick leave hours for Fire department shift captains, may 
accumulate up to the accrued balance of the sick leave hours as of December 31, 1994 which then will become 
their accumulated maximum. All regular full-time employees employed by the City after December 31, 1994 may 
accumulate up to 1,040 sick leave hours, or 1,452 sick leave hours for Fire department shift captains. Upon 
retirement from the City, employees are paid one quarter of his/her accumulated sick leave. To be eligible for the 
sick leave payout, the retiring employee must be eligible to receive retirement benefits for service with the City 
through the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) or Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement 
System (KP&F). 

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred and the varying amounts of accumulated sick leave are accrued upon 
employees becoming KPERS or KP&F retirement eligible in the government-wide and proprietary financial 
statements. In the governmental fund financial statements, a liability is accrued when it has matured, for example, 
as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest 
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are 
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this 
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue for special assessments, is reported only in the 
governmental funds balance sheet. The government funds report unavailable revenues from two sources: 
property taxes and special assessments. The government-wide statements of net position report only the 
unavailable revenue for property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources 
in the period that the amounts become available.  

Fund Balance 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the following classifications: 
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts 
that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. Restricted fund balance indicates that constraints have been placed on the use of resources 
either by being externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed fund 
balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal 
action of the city commission. Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City 
management’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Unassigned fund 
balance represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. When an expenditure is incurred for 
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available restricted amounts are considered 
to be spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned 
fund balance is available, the following is the order in which resources will be expended: committed, assigned 
and unassigned. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Fund Balance (Continued) 

The following is the detail for fund balance classifications in the financial statements: 

Other Total
Capital Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Improvement Service Projects Funds Funds
Fund Balances:
  Restricted for:
    Economic development -$                -$                 -$                -$                824,987$      824,987$      
    Public works -                  -                   -                  -                  1,477,151     1,477,151     
    Public safety -                  -                   -                  -                  993,658        993,658        
    Debt payments -                  -                   3,226,458   -                  -                    3,226,458     
  Committed for:
    Employee benefits -                  -                   -                  -                  109,769        109,769        
    Capital improvements -                  607,421       -                  -                  -                    607,421        
    Culture and recreation -                  -                   -                  -                  520                520                
  Unassigned: 5,186,893 -                   -                  -                  -                    5,186,893

Total Fund Balances 5,186,893$ 607,421$     3,226,458$ -$                3,406,085$  12,426,857$

Major Governmental Funds

Concentrations of Credit Risk  

Loans are extended and secured with a lien on the property and a personal guaranty to local industries under 
the revolving loan program. Unsecured credit is extended to customers for water and sewer fees and charges 
for services. Intergovernmental receivables include unsecured amounts due from federal, state and county 
agencies for various grant programs. Credit is extended to citizens for special assessments levied by the City 
for capital improvements. These assessments are secured by liens on the related properties. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

173



31

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

Budgetary Information 

Applicable Kansas statutes require that budgets be legally adopted for all funds unless exempted by a specific 
statute. Legal operating budgets are required for the General, Special Highway, Capital Improvement, Economic 
Development, Library, Fire Equipment, Utility Charges, Employee Benefits, Drug & Alcohol, Law Enforcement, 
and the Debt Service Funds. Budgets are not required for the Military Affairs, Grants, Sundown Salute,  Rural 
Housing District, Revolving Loans, Water and Sewer, Stormwater, Spin City Skating and Sanitation Funds. All 
budgets are prepared utilizing the modified accrual basis and of accounting. 

The statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating 
budget.

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1st. 
2. Publication in a local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on the budget 

on or before August 5th.
3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after publication of notice of hearing. 
4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th. 

Kansas statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously 
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, a notice of public hearing to 
amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days after publication, the hearing 
may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that time. The 2013 budget was amended for 
the Library and Law Enforcement funds. 

Under Kansas statutes management cannot amend the total budget of a fund without approval of the governing 
body; however, the statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund 
or department. Therefore, the legal level of control is at the fund level for all legally adopted budgets. City 
Commission approval is not needed for category changes or budget transfers within an approved budget. Major 
category means total personnel services, total contractual services, total materials and supplies, total other 
charges, or total capital outlay. 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the year ended December 31, 2013, expenditures and transfer out exceeded appropriations in the utility 
charges fund by $ 418 and the employee benefits fund by $182,156. These over expenditures were funded by 
excess reserves and available fund balance in the funds. 
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3.   Restatement of Equity 

In 2013, it was determined that an adjustment to beginning accounts payable was required. Additionally, it 
was determined that an adjustment was needed to eliminate the prior periods unamortized balance of 
deferred bond costs in the Water and Sewer fund and the Governmental Activities. The Olivia Farms 
Development Fund was also reclassified as an agency fund from a governmental fund. The effects of 
which are as follows: 

Governmental
Activities Activities

Net Position - December 31, 2012 8,096,317$      56,750,063$ -$                    

Prior Period Adjustment [1,401,569]       [1,563,482]     640,089         

Net Position - December 31, 2012, Restated 6,694,748$  55,186,581$ 640,089$       

4. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned. 
Kansas statutes require that deposits be collateralized, and that collateral pledged must have a fair market 
value equal to 100% of the deposits and investments, less insured amounts, and must be assigned for the 
benefit of the City. At December 31, 2013, the City’s deposits were insured by Federal depository insurance 
and uninsured deposits were fully collateralized in accordance with the City’s policy. 

Investments 

At December 31, 2013, the City had the following investments: 

Investment Type Maturities Fair Value
State of Kansas Municipal Investment Pool < 1 year $4,746,238

Credit risk 
Kansas statutes authorize the City, with certain restrictions, to deposit or invest in temporary notes, no-fund 
warrants, open accounts, time deposits, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury Bills 
and Notes, the State of Kansas municipal investment pool, or to make direct investments. The City's 
investments in the MIP are rated AAAf/s 1+ by Standard & Poor's. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, but to the extent possible, the City will 
attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. The City is not exposed to significant 
interest rate risk. 175
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4. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Custodial credit risk - investments 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City 
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. At December 31, 2013, the City's investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

5. Capital Assets  

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:  

Primary Government: 

Restated
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
  Land 13,900,622$ -$                -$                  13,900,622$
  Construction in progress -                  96,449 63,508         32,941         

Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,900,622 96,449 63,508         13,933,563

Capital assets being depreciated:
  Buildings and improvements 20,449,171 -                  -                   20,449,171
  Machinery and equipment 9,531,884   919,565      26,294         10,425,155
  Infrastructure 96,209,949 -                  -                   96,209,949

Total capital assets being depreciated 126,191,004 919,565 26,294         127,084,275

Less accumulated depreciation for:
  Buildings and improvements 9,294,548   384,666      -                   9,679,214     
  Machinery and equipment 8,202,771   509,204      -                   8,711,975     
  Infrastructure 36,774,442 2,689,329 -                   39,463,771

Total accumulated depreciation 54,271,761 3,583,199 -                   57,854,960

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 71,919,243 [2,663,634] 26,294         69,229,315

Governmental activities capital assets, net 85,819,865$ [2,567,185]$ 89,802$        83,162,878$
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5. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Restated
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
  Land 442,563$     -$                -$                  442,563$
  Construction in progress -                  156,786 156,786       -                   

Total capital assets not being depreciated 442,563      156,786 156,786       442,563       

Capital assets being depreciated:
  Buildings and improvements 25,219,140 -                  -                   25,219,140
  Machinery and equipment 9,085,444   34,714        -                   9,120,158    
  Infrastructure 75,283,753 156,786 -                   75,440,539

Total capital assets being depreciated 109,588,337 191,500 -                   109,779,837

Less accumulated depreciation for:
  Buildings and improvements 7,854,289   416,460      -                   8,270,749    
  Machinery and equipment 6,998,807   319,155      -                   7,317,962    
  Infrastructure 28,606,248 1,279,690 -                   29,885,938

Total accumulated depreciation 43,459,344 2,015,305 -                   45,474,649

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 66,128,993 [1,823,805] -                   64,305,188

Business-type activities capital assets, net 66,571,556$ [1,667,019]$ 156,786$      64,747,751$

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities:
  General government 397,683$          
  Public safety 286,537            
  Public works 2,818,872         
  Parks and recreation 80,107             

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 3,583,199$

Business-type activities:
  Water and Sewer 1,676,957$       
  Stormwater 239,674            
  Nonmajor 98,674             

Total depreciation expense - business type activities 2,015,305$
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6. Defined Benefit Pension Plan  

Plan Description  

The City participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) and the Kansas Police and 
Firemen's Retirement System (KP&F). Both are part of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan as provided by K.S.A. 74-4901, et seq. KPERS and KP&F provide retirement benefits, life 
insurance, disability income benefits, and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit 
provisions. KPERS and KP&F issue a publicly available financial report (only one is issued) that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by writing to 
KPERS (611 S. Kansas Avenue, Suite 100; Topeka, Kansas 66603-3803) or by calling 1-888-275-5737. 

Funding Policy 

K.S.A. 74-4919 establishes the KPERS member-employee contribution rate at 4% of covered salary for all 
employees hired prior to July 1, 2009. K.S.A. 74-49,210 establishes the KPERS member-employee 
contributions rate at 6% of covered salary for all employees hired after July 1, 2009. K.S.A. 74-4975 
establishes KP&F member-employee contribution rate at 7% of covered salary. The employer collects and 
remits member-employee contributions according to the provisions of section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates be determined annually based on the results of 
an annual actuarial valuation. KPERS and KP&F are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. State law sets a 
limitation on annual increases in the employer contribution rates. The KPERS employer rate established by 
statute for 2013 was 8.94%. The City's employer contributions to KPERS for the years ending December 31, 
2013, 2012, and 2011 were $292,896, $248,025, and $200,687, respectively, equal to the statutory required 
contributions for each year. The City's KP&F uniform participating employer rate established for calendar year 
2013 is 17.26%. Employers participating in KP&F also make contributions to amortize the liability for past 
service costs, if any, which is determined separately for each participating employer. The contributions to 
KP&F for the years ending December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $861,294, $811,992, and $726,663, 
respectively, equal to the statutory required contributions for each year. 

7. Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits 

Description. The City offers postemployment health insurance to retired employees. The benefits are provided 
through a single employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the City. Kansas 
statutes provide that postemployment healthcare benefits be extended to retired employees who have met age 
and/or service eligibility requirements until the individuals become eligible for Medicare coverage at age 65. 
The medical insurance benefit provides the same coverage for retirees and their dependents as for active 
employees and their dependents. The benefit is available for selection at retirement and is extended to early 
retirees with at least ten years of service and their dependents until the individuals become eligible for 
Medicare at 65. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report. 

Funding Policy. The City provides health insurance benefits to retirees and their dependents in accordance 
with Kansas law (K.S.A. 12-5040). Kansas statutes, which may be amended by the state legislature, establish 
that participating retirees may be required to contribute to the employee group health benefits plan, including 
administrative costs at an amount not to exceed 125 percent of the premium cost for other similarly situated 
employees. The City requires participating retirees to contribute 100 percent of the composite premium cost of 
active employees to maintain coverage. 

The City appropriates funds annually for the costs associated with this retirement benefit and provides funding 
for the expenditures on a pay-as-you-go basis through the General Fund. In 2013, the City contributed  
$13,800 to the plan. 
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7. Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued) 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation.  The City's annual OPEB (other post employment 
benefit) cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level 
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period of not to exceed thirty years. The following table presents the 
components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in 
the City's net OPEB obligation. 

Annual required contribution 63,534$
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 7,716       
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution [11,098]   
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 60,152
Benefit payments 13,800    
Change in net OPEB obligation 46,352     
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 154,350
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 200,702$

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation are as follows: 

Annual Percentage of
Fiscal Annual OPEB Net Annual OPEB
Year OPEB Cost OPEB Cost

Ended Cost Contributed Obligation Contributed
December 31, 2011 53,732$     13,800$     111,316$ 25.68%
December 31, 2012 56,834       13,800       154,350   24.28%
December 31, 2013 60,152       13,800       200,702   22.94%

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the City did not meet the requirement to have an actuarial study 
done in accordance with GASB Statement 45. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress.  As of January 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $510,319.  The City's policy is to fund the benefits on a pay-as-you-
go basis, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $510,319. The covered payroll (annual 
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $8,374,290 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 6.09% percent. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation includes, for example, 
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with the past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, will present in time, multi-year trend information about whether 
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 179
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of valuation and the historical pattern of 
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 

In the January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was applied. The 
actuarial assumptions included a 2.0 percent discount rate, which reflects the expected returns of asset 
classes stipulated in the investment policy underlying idle funds and recent return experience with cash 
flows that match the expected benefit payments to the City's current and future retirees. The valuation 
assumed annual healthcare cost trend rates of six to ten percent. The UAAL is being amortized using the 
level dollar of projected payroll method over a period of 30 years with the remaining amortization period of 
29 years. The amortization period used is closed. 

8. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; damage to and destruction of assets; business 
interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee 
health, dental and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from 
such matters. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding 
years. There have not been significant reductions in coverage from prior years. 

9. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

There are a number of claims and/or lawsuits to which the City is a party as a result of the ordinary course 
of City activities. The City management and legal counsel anticipate that the potential claims against the 
City not covered by insurance; if any, resulting from such matters would not materially affect the financial 
position of the City. 

Industrial Revenue Bonds 

The City has issued industrial revenue bonds to finance the purchase of land and construction of facilities 
leased to local businesses. The lease agreements provide for rentals sufficient to service the related 
bonds. The debt service on these issues is paid solely from lease agreements; these issues do not 
constitute a debt of the City. The lessees have the option of purchasing the leased properties at any time 
during the lease periods for amounts sufficient to retire the related outstanding bonds. At the end of the 
lease periods, which conform to bond maturity schedules, the lessees may either purchase the property for 
a nominal amount or renew the leases annually at nominal amounts. As of December 31, 2013, industrial 
revenue bonds of $24,872,954 are outstanding. 

The City has issued several series of industrial revenue bonds (IRB's) for economic development projects 
within the City for which the Spirit of '76, Inc. a Kansas not-for-profit 501(c)(41) corporation, is the tenant 
under separate financing leases that provide for basic rental payments in amounts sufficient to pay debt 
service on the IRB's. For each of the projects, the Spirit of '76 has entered into a sublease agreement with 
an entity that occupies and operates the project. The entities occupying and operating the projects are 
Ventria Bioscience, Capgemini, Inc., the Junction City Opera House, and Edenspace Systems 
Corporation. The City has guaranteed IRB’s in the form of grant payments with outstanding balances as of 
December 31, 2013 of $4,075,208. 
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9. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
Industrial Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
In relation to these IRB's the City and the Spirit of '76 have entered into economic development grant 
agreements whereby the City agrees to provide Spirit with an economic development grant in an amount 
necessary for the Spirit of '76 to make the basic rental payments required by the leases. Pursuant to its 
home rule powers, the City has adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds 
in amounts necessary to fulfill the City's obligations under each of the grant agreements, thus making the 
City's obligations to the Spirit of '76 pursuant to the grant agreements binding obligations not subject to 
appropriation. The City does not intend to issue such general obligation bonds, but to make the payments 
on the dates necessary for the Spirit of '76 to make the basic rent payments. 

10. Long-Term Debt 
Changes in long-term debt outstanding are as follows: 
Governmental Activities Amounts

Balance Balance Due Within
January 1, 2013 Adjustment Additions Reductions December 31, 2013 One Year

General obligation bonds 59,348,137$      -$                  8,050,000$  9,436,442$    57,961,695$            2,885,876$    
  Less: unamortized bond discount [486,173]            -                    -                   [26,045]          [460,128]                  [26,045]           
  Plus:  unamortized bond premium 164,067             6,176            197,988       16,752           351,479                   25,618           
Special assessment debt
  with government commitment 58,529,603        -                    -                   2,913,879      55,615,724              2,565,667      
KDOT Loans Payable 13,661,758        -                    -                   878,501         12,783,257              905,873         
Certificates of Participation 3,285,000          -                    -                   350,000         2,935,000                365,000         
Capital leases payable 1,366,638          -                    88,328         486,813         968,153                   359,727         
Notes payable 567,814             -                    -                   80,783           487,031                   84,321           
Compensated absences 491,407             -                    1,096,675    491,407         1,096,675                491,407         
Net other postemployment benefit
  obligation 154,350             -                    60,152         13,800           200,702                   -                     

137,082,601$    6,176$         9,493,143$ 14,642,332$ 131,939,588$          7,657,444$   

Business-Type Activities
Amounts

Balance Additions/ Balance Due Within
January 1, 2013 Adjustment Additions Reductions December 31, 2013 One Year

General obligation bonds 9,800,000$        -$                  -$                 995,000$       8,805,000$              1,030,000$    
  Plus:  unamortized bond premium 77,574               -                    -                   12,988           64,586                     12,989           
Revolving loans payable 6,785,481          -                    -                   468,925         6,316,556                483,882         
Capital leases payable 654,551             -                    -                   141,290         513,261                   141,865         
Compensated absences 16,065               -                    49,541         16,065           49,541                     40,015          

17,333,671$      -$                 49,541$      1,634,268$   15,748,944$            1,708,751$   

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund. 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type 
activities. 

General obligation bonds payable at December 31, 2013 are comprised of the following issues: 

Final Outstanding 
Callable Interest Original Maturity December 31,

Date Rates Issue Date 2013
General Obligation Bonds:

Governmental activities:
Series 2005-DO 9/1/2015 4.50% to 4.875% 6,000,000$    9/1/2025 4,355,000$         
Series 2007-DP 9/1/2017 4.00% to 5.00% 9,039,606     9/1/2027 7,324,479           
Series 2008-DQ 9/1/2018 4.00% to 4.50% 1,320,000     9/1/2028 1,310,000           
Series 2008-DR 9/1/2018 5.75% to 6.00% 10,265,000   9/1/2028 8,870,000           
Series 2008-DS anytime 4.125% 382,000        9/15/2028 313,283              
Series 2008-DT 9/1/2016 5.25% 1,995,000     9/1/2024 1,604,136           
Series 2009-DU 9/1/2019 3.00% to 5.00% 4,222,060     9/1/2014 3,662,280           
Series 2010-DW 9/1/2031 2.00% to 4.50% 32,681,738   9/1/2031 13,501,635         
Series 2010-DX 9/1/2031 2.40% to 6.20% 5,690,000     9/1/2031 4,320,754           
Series 2011A 9/1/2034 4.50% to 5.00% 4,017,074     9/1/2034 3,997,355           
Series 2011C 9/1/2026 5.00% to 5.75% 410,000        9/1/2026 410,000              
Series 2013A 9/1/2021 2.00% to 3.00% 8,247,988     9/1/2024 8,184,124          

57,853,046
Business-type activities:

Series 2007-DP 9/1/2017 4.00% to 5.00% 4,205,000     9/1/2027 3,400,000           
Series 2008-DQ 9/1/2018 4.00% to 4.50% 1,950,000     9/1/2028 1,620,000           
Series 2009-DV noncallable 3.00% to 4.00% 5,864,793     9/1/2017 3,004,352           
Series 2011B 9/1/2036 5.50% 847,465          9/1/2036 845,234             

8,869,586          

66,722,632$

The future annual requirements for general obligation bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2013 are as 
follows:

182



40

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Business
Year Ending Governmental Type

December 31, Activies Activies Total
2014 5,430,014$            1,424,677$         6,854,692$            
2015 5,441,022              1,424,939            6,865,961              
2016 5,437,145              1,416,895            6,854,040              
2017 5,660,417              1,146,608            6,807,025              
2018 6,077,857              537,168               6,615,024

2019 - 2023 27,101,736            2,683,871            29,785,608            
2024 - 2028 20,063,337            2,341,137            22,404,473            
2029 - 2033 6,720,272            275,238             6,995,511              
2034 - 2036 634,601               887,430 1,522,031             

Total Principal and Interest 82,566,401            12,137,964         94,704,365            
Total Interest 24,713,355 3,268,379 27,981,733           
Total Principal 57,853,046$  8,869,586$  66,722,632$        

The City issued Series 2013A general obligation refunding bonds in the amount of $8,050,000 on July 2, 2013 to 
refund $825,000 of the City’s Series DK general obligation bonds, $3,200,000 of the City’s Series DL general 
obligation bonds, and $3,700,000 of the City’s Series DN general obligation bonds.  The net proceeds were used 
to fully refund Series DK and Series DL general obligation bonds and to establish an escrow account invested in 
U.S. Government Securities to pay the outstanding principle of the Series DN general obligation bonds and the 
interest due.  As a result, $3,460,000 of the Series DN bonds was considered to be defeased and the liability for 
the defeased bonds has been removed from the City’s financial statements.  The transactions resulted in an 
economic gain of $650,892 and a reduction of $652,808 in future debt payments.  The interest rate on the bonds is 
2.00% to 3.00% and has a final maturity of September 1, 2024.

Special Assessment Bonds  
The City's special assessment debt was issued to provide funds for the construction of infrastructure in new 
commercial and residential developments. These bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the 
property owners benefitted by this construction. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or 
delinquent special assessments at the time the debt service payment is due, the government must provide 
resources to cover the deficiency until other resources, for example, foreclosure proceeds, are received. 
Special assessment bonds at December 31, 2013 are comprised of the following issues: 

Final Outstanding 
Interest Original Maturity December 31,
Rates Issue Date 2013

Special Assessment Bonds:
Governmental activities:

Series 2007-DP 4.00% to 5.00% 15,185,394$ 9/1/2027 12,050,521$    
Series 2009-DU 3.00% to 5.00% 30,057,940  9/1/2029 26,072,720      
Series 2010-DW 2.00% to 4.50% 17,984,037  9/1/2031 16,488,237      
Series 2010-DX 2.40% to 6.20% 1,073,596    9/1/2031 1,004,246       

55,615,724$   
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Special Assessment Bonds (Continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for special assessment bonds are as follows: 

Principal Interest
2014
2015 2,658,297       2,317,707       
2016 2,729,331       2,232,792       
2017 2,826,411       2,137,196       
2018 2,927,743       2,031,499       

2019 - 2023 16,610,326     8,209,488       
2024 - 2028 19,514,470     4,101,197       
2029 - 2031 5,783,478     420,103        

55,615,724$ 23,847,712$

Activities
Governmental 

Capital Leases 

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of equipment. These 
lease agreements qualify as capital leases and therefore have been recorded at the present value of their 
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The cost of capital assets financed through capital 
leases totaled $3,706,142. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for capital leases as of December 31, 2013: 

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 359,727$     31,744$   145,118$ 14,352$   
2015 252,169       19,123    149,902  9,568      
2016 221,749       10,249    154,208  5,263      
2017 113,307       3,327      64,033    907         
2018 21,201        455         -          -          

968,153$  64,898$   513,261$ 30,090$   

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Revolving Loans Payable 

During 2000, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment's Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The agreement enabled the City to borrow 
$3,849,275 to finance improvements to the sewer system. The loan is being repaid over twenty-one years 
at an interest rate of 3.52%. Payments of $153,254 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding balance 
of $1,439,075 which is shown as a liability in the water/sewer fund. 

During 2001, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment's Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Fund. The agreement enabled the City to borrow 
$744,293 to finance improvements to the water system. The loan is being repaid over twenty-one years at 
an interest rate of 4.10%. Payments of $35,236 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding balance of 
$371,273 which is shown as a liability in the water/sewer fund. 

During 2006, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment's Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The agreement enabled the City to 
borrow $6,002,166 to finance improvements to the Southwest Wastewater Treatment Plant. Payments of 
$271,275 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding balance of $4,279,426 which is shown as a 
liability in the water/sewer fund.  

In the 2009, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment's Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Fund. The agreement enabled the City to borrow 
$406,516 to finance improvements to the water system. The loan is being repaid over twenty years at an 
interest rate of 3.47%.  Payments of $9,160 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding balance of 
$226,782 which is shown as a liability in the water/sewer fund. 

During 2006, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enabled the City to borrow $3,000,000 to finance significant street improvements. The loan is 
being repaid over ten years at an interest rate of 3.86%. Payments of $275,736 were made in 2013, 
leaving a total outstanding balance of $1,077,286. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental 
activities column of the statement of net assets. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Revolving Loans Payable (Continued) 

During 2007, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enabled the City to borrow $6,000,000 to finance significant street improvements. The loan 
bears interest at a rate of 3.92%. Payments of $211,249 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding 
balance of $3,990,222. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the 
statement of net assets. The debt service requirements to the maturity date will not be determinable until 
the final draws have been made. 

During 2008, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enabled the City to borrow $6,000,000 to finance significant street improvements. The loan 
bears interest at a rate of 3.76%. Payments of $205,952 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding 
balance of $3,710,014. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the 
statement of net assets. The debt service requirements to the maturity date will not be determinable until 
the final draws have been made. 

During 2008, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enabled the City to borrow $4,071,463 to finance significant street improvements. The loan 
bears interest at a rate of 4.36%. Payments of $145,784 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding 
balance of $3,128,721. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the 
statement of net assets.  

In the 2009, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enables the City to borrow $107,086 to finance street improvements. The loan bears interest 
at a rate of 3.76%. Payments of $4,209 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding balance of 
$92,535. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the statement of net 
assets.  

During 2010, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enabled the City to borrow $478,845 to finance significant street improvements. The loan 
bears interest at a rate of 3.76%. Payments of $18,806 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding 
balance of $415,772. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the 
statement of net assets.  

During 2010, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The 
agreement enabled the City to borrow $424,734 to finance significant street improvements. The loan bears 
interest at a rate of 3.65%. Payments of $16,766 were made in 2013, leaving a total outstanding balance of 
$368,707. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the statement of net 
assets. 
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10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Revolving Loans Payable (Continued) 

The estimated future annual debt service requirements for the amortizable loans payable are as follows: 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2014 905,873$          507,110$       483,882$       187,271$        
2015 941,486             471,497        499,151        172,036         
2016 978,503             434,480        514,917        156,306         
2017 880,699             395,774        531,195        140,064         
2018 723,748             361,272        548,004        123,294         

2019 - 2023 4,072,902         1,352,200     2,503,777     358,000         
2024 - 2028 4,218,717         477,347        1,200,789     67,464           
2029 - 2030 61,327              2,532            34,840          1,526            

Total 12,783,257$     4,002,212$    6,316,556$ 1,205,961$    

Business Type
Activities

Governmental 
Activities

Certificates of Participation 

The City has issued $ 4,475,000 of certificates of participation series 2007 with an interest rate of 4% and 
with a final maturity in 2022. Principal payments are scheduled annually ranging from $120,000 to 
$580,000. 

Future maturities of the certificates of participation are as follows: 

Principal Interest
2014 365,000$        121,888$
2015 380,000          107,288
2016 395,000          92,088
2017 410,000          76,288
2018 430,000          58,863

2019 - 2022 955,000 130,900
2,935,000$ 587,313$

Governmental
Activities
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10. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Spin City Note Payable 

The City took over operation of the Spin City skating rink in 2008. At that time, the City assumed an 
outstanding note payable with a balance of $158,382 from the prior operator of the skating rink. The City took 
out an additional $355,000 loan in 2008 to finance the purchase of adjacent property and an additional 
building. In the 2009, the City rolled those two outstanding loans into one loan and drew an additional 
$326,618 on the new loan for a total outstanding balance of $840,000. The loan bears interest at a rate of 
4.45%. Principal payments of $80,783 were made in 2013 leaving an outstanding balance of $487,031. This 
balance is shown as a liability in the government wide governmental activities statement. 

Future maturities of the note payable are as follows: 

Principal Interest
2014 84,321$        20,294$
2015 88,205         16,410
2016 92,229         12,385
2017 96,516         8,099
2018 100,962       3,653
2019 24,798 196

487,031$  61,037$

Governmental
Activities

Subsequent Event 

The City entered into a lease agreement to purchase two fire trucks on March 4, 2014 for a total balance of 
$1,203,000.  The lease has an interest rate of 2.09% with a final maturity date of February 17, 2019. 

The City entered into a lease agreement to purchase two front loaders and one solid waste truck with 
packer on March 17, 2014 for a total balance of $367,310.  The lease has an interest rate of 1.84% with a 
final maturity date of April 2, 2019. 

On March 11, 2014, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement in the amount of $476,504 to pay off the 
Spin City Note Payable.  The lease has an interest rate of 2,24% with a final maturity date of March 11, 2019. 
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11. Special Assessments 

Kansas statutes require special benefit district projects financed in part by special assessments to be financed 
through the issuance of general obligation bonds that are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. Further, 
state statutes permit levying additional general ad valorem taxes in the City's debt service fund to finance 
delinquent special assessments receivable. Accordingly, special assessments receivable are accounted for 
within the City's debt service fund. Special assessments are levied over the repayment period of the bonds and 
the annual installments are due and payable with annual ad valorem taxes.  At December 31, 2013, the special 
assessment taxes levied are a lien on the property and are recorded as a special assessment receivable in the 
debt service fund with a corresponding amount recorded as deferred revenue. Special assessments [net of 
allowance] receivable at December 31, 2013 was $48,515,428. 

12. Interfund Transactions 

lnterfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2013, consisted of the following: 

Regulatory
From To Amount Authority

Water and Sewer General 970,000$    K.S.A. 12-825d
Stormwater General 32,500        K.S.A. 12-825d
Stormwater Debt Service 450,000      K.S.A. 12-825d
Sanitation General 70,000        K.S.A. 12-825d
Utility Charges General 418            Fund close out

1,522,918$

Transfers

Due to Due from
Other Funds Other funds

General Fund 20,000$      -$               
Capital Improvement Fund 386,734      -                 
Olivia Farms Development Fund -                  270,000
Debt service Fund -                  303,625
Other Governmental Funds -                  363,144
Water and Sewer Fund 530,035 -               

936,769$ 936,769$

Transfers are used to move revenues from the find that statutes or the budget requires to collect them to the 
fund that statutes or the budget requires to expend them. Nonroutine transfers include transfers to the nonmajor 
funds from the general fund, water/sewer fund, and nonmajor governmental funds to provide local support for 
grant programs and to reimburse the funds for administrative services provided, and transfers to the capital 
projects fund from nonmajor proprietary funds, the water/sewer fund, the special highway fund, and the capital 
improvement fund to fund capital projects and from the water/sewer fund to the general fund for administrative 
services provided, and transfers to the capital improvement fund from the capital projects fund and general fund 
for capital improvement projects, and to the water/sewer fund from the capital projects fund and capital 
improvement fund to fund certain proprietary capital projects, and to the debt service fund from the stormwater 
fund to reimburse the fund for its share of debt service payments. 

The due to/from is an interfund loan payable within one year. 
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

December 31, 2013 

Schedule of Funding Progress: 

Annual UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered Percent of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date Assets (a) Liability (b) (b) - (a) (a/b) (c) (b-a)/(c)
1/1/2009 -$         510,319$       510,319$       0.0% 8,374,290$       6.09%
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for 
particular purposes.  The special revenue funds used by the City of Junction City, Kansas are: 

Economic Development Fund – To account for the joint City/County department that promotes retail and industrial 
development within or near Junction City and Geary County. 

Utility Charges Fund - To provide street lighting and all gas and electric for City-owned facilities. 

Employee Benefits Fund - To account for all payroll-related benefit expenses including the City’s costs of workers’ 
compensation, social security, retirement, unemployment and health insurance. 

Library Fund - To account for the levying of ad valorem property tax on behalf of the Dorothy Bramlage Library 
Board.

Special Highway Fund - To account for monies levied by the State of Kansas which produces revenues the City can 
use to defray, in whole or in part, the cost of constructing, altering, reconstructing, maintaining and repairing streets 
and highways. 

Fire Equipment Fund - To account for revenues and expenses for the purchase of rolling stock equipment for the fire 
department.

Drug and Alcohol Fund - To account for the monies provided by as state liquor tax on private clubs which are to be 
expended for the purchase, establishment, maintenance or expansion of services or programs for alcoholism 
prevention and education.  The City used this fund to support the D.A.R.E. program in the public school system. 

Military Affairs Fund - To account for monies received to reimburse the City for all expenses related to a person that 
develops relations with Fort Riley officials. 

Sundown Salute Fund - To account for the collection of donations used for the City’s annual 4th of July community 
celebration. 

Revolving Loans Fund – To account for revolving loans used to assist business owners with business upgrades in 
Junction City. 

Grants Fund – To account for grant proceeds received from various funding sources. 

Rural Housing District Fund – To account for the taxes received to pay the debt on the Bluffs Park.  

Law Enforcement Trust Fund – To account for funds collected through drug forfeitures. The funds can only be used 
for additional technical equipment or expertise, matching funds for federal grants or to defray the costs of protracted 
or complex investigation for local police. 
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19 30 35 20
Economic Utility Employee

Development Charges Benefits Library
ASSETS
  Cash and investments 114,312$       -$                   109,117$       -$                   
  Receivables

Property tax 263,244         -                     -                     767,485         
Accounts -                     -                     652 -                     

  Due from other funds - - - -
Total assets 377,556$  -$  109,769$  767,485$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
 Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 4,816$  -$  -$  -$
Total liabilities 4,816 - - -

 Deferred inflows of resources:
  Unavailable revenue - property taxes 263,244 - - 767,485
Total deferred inflows of resources 263,244 - - 767,485

Fund balance:
      Restricted 109,496         -                     -                     -                     

Committed - - 109,769 -
Total fund balance [deficit] 109,496 - 109,769 -

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 Resources and fund balances 377,556$  -$  109,769$  767,485$

December 31, 2013
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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47 14
Special Fire Drug and Military
Highway Equipment Alcohol Affairs

ASSETS
  Cash and investments 1,097,051$  257,937$    127,649$       -$                   
  Receivables

Property tax -                   350,771      -                     -                     
Accounts -                   -                  -                     -                     

  Due from other funds 343,144 - - -
Total assets 1,440,195$  608,708$  127,649$  -$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
 Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 15$  21,241$  144$  -$
Total liabilities 15 21,241 144 -

 Deferred inflows of resources:
  Unavailable revenue - property taxes - 350,771 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - 350,771 - -

Fund balance:
      Restricted 1,440,180    236,696      127,505         -                     

Committed - - - -
Total fund balance [deficit] 1,440,180 236,696 127,505 -

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
 Resources and fund balances 1,440,195$  608,708$  127,649$  -$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

December 31, 2013

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

194



50
46 52 2 Rural

Sundown Revolving Housing Law
Salute Loans Grants District Enforcement Totals

256$              475,904$        22,769$         -$                   655,510$       2,860,505$

-                     -                      -                      -                      -                      1,381,500
264                261,013          -                      -                      -                      261,929         

- - 20,000 - - 363,144
520$  736,917$  42,769$  -$  655,510$  4,867,078$

-$  21,426$  5,798$  -$  26,053$  79,493$
- 21,426 5,798 - 26,053 79,493

- - - - - 1,381,500
- - - - - 1,381,500

-                     715,491          36,971           -                      629,457         3,295,796
520 - - - - 110,289
520 715,491 36,971 - 629,457 3,406,085

520$  736,917$  42,769$  -$  655,510$  4,867,078$

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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Economic Utility Employee
Development Charges Benefits Library

Revenues
Taxes 179,906$       -$                  48,884$         818,542$       
Intergovernmental -                     -                    -                     -                     
Use of money and property -                     -                    -                     -                     
Miscellaneous - 44 117,941 -

Total revenues 179,906 44 166,825 818,542

Expenditures
General government -                     -                    182,156         831,875         
Public safety -                     -                    -                     -                     
Public works -                     -                    -                     -                     
Recreation -                     -                    -                     -                     
Economic development 149,145         -                    -                     -                     
Capital outlay -                     -                    -                     -                     
Debt service
  Principal -                     -                    -                     -                     
  Interest - - - -

Total Expenditures 149,145 - 182,156 831,875

Excess [deficiency] of revenues over
 [under] expenditures 30,761 44 [15,331] [13,333]

Other financing sources [uses]
    Transfer [out] - [418] - -

Total other financing sources [uses] - [418] - -

Net change in fund balance 30,761 [374] [15,331] [13,333]

Fund balances, beginning of the year 78,735           374               125,100         13,333           

Prior period adjustment - - - -

Fund balances, beginning of the year, restated 78,735 374 125,100 13,333

Fund balance, end of year 109,496$  -$  109,769$  -$

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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Special Fire Drug and Military Sundown

Highway Equipment Alcohol Affairs Salute
Revenues

Taxes -$                140,146$  76,569$         -$                   -$                   
Intergovernmental 628,698      -                -                     -                     -                     
Interest income -                  -                -                     -                     -                     
Miscellaneous - 283 - - 5,796

Total revenues 628,698 140,429 76,569 - 5,796

Expenditures
General government -                  -               -                     -                     -                     
Public safety -                  45,559      81,413           -                     -                     
Public works 18,302        -                -                     -                     -                     
Recreation -                  -                -                     -                     5,780             
Economic development -                  -                -                     -                     -                     
Capital outlay -                  -                -                     -                     -                     
Debt service
  Principal -                  -                -                     -                     -                     
  Interest - - - - -

Total Expenditures 18,302 45,559 81,413 - 5,780

Excess [deficiency] of revenues over
 [under] expenditures 610,396 94,870 [4,844] - 16

Other financing sources [uses]
    Transfer [out] - - - - -

Total other financing sources [uses] - - - - -

Net change in fund balance 610,396 94,870 [4,844] - 16

Fund balances, beginning of the year 873,373      141,826    132,349         26,725           504                

Prior period adjustment [43,589] - - [26,725] -

Fund balances, beginning of the year, restated 829,784 141,826 132,349 - 504

Fund balance, end of year 1,440,180$ 236,696$  127,505$  -$  520$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
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50
52 Rural Law

Revolving Housing Enforcement
Loans Grants District Trust Totals

-$                   -$                   398,263$       -$                   1,662,310$    
-                     318,775         -                     -                     947,473         
-                     -                     406                -                     406                

8,966 - - 1,152,295 1,285,325
8,966 318,775 398,669 1,152,295 3,895,514

-                     -                     -                     -                     1,014,031      
-                     22,265           -                     785,513         934,750         
-                     92,922           -                     -                     111,224         
-                     292                -                     -                     6,072             

31,206           -                     -                     -                     180,351         
-                     1,424             -                     -                     1,424             

-                     -                     295,000         -                     295,000         
- - 103,669 - 103,669

31,206 116,903 398,669 785,513 2,646,521

[22,240] 201,872 - 366,782 1,248,993

- - - - [418]

- - - - [418]

[22,240] 201,872 - 366,782 1,248,575

737,731         [164,901]        -                     262,675         2,227,824      

- - - - [70,314]

737,731 [164,901] - 262,675 2,157,510

715,491$  36,971$  -$  629,457$  3,406,085$

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
      Taxes 6,052,018$    6,317,534$    6,317,534$    [265,516]$      
      Special assessments 2,304,567      1,900,000      1,900,000      404,567         
      Sales tax 3,796,468      3,600,000      3,600,000      196,468         
      Use of money and property 476,930         538,000         538,000         [61,070]          
      Miscellaneous revenues 210,000 150,000 150,000 60,000

Total revenues 12,839,983 12,505,534 12,505,534 334,449

Expenditures
      Debt service
        Principal 13,283,026    13,219,573    21,467,561    8,184,535
        Interest and other charges 6,152,877      -                     -                     [6,152,877]
      Payments on contractual obligations 655,548         -                     -                     [655,548]        
      Neighborhood revitalization 426,750         397,036         397,036         [29,714]          
      Other 249,702 191,000 191,000 [58,702]

Total expenditures 20,767,903 13,807,609 22,055,597 1,287,694

Excess [deficiency] of revenues 
   over [under] expenditures [7,927,920] [1,302,075] [9,550,063] 1,622,143

Other financing sources [uses]
   Bond proceeds 8,050,000      -                     8,050,000      -                     
   Bond premium 197,988         -                     197,988         -                     
   Transfer in 450,000 850,000 850,000 [400,000]

Total other financing sources 8,697,988 850,000 9,097,988 [400,000]

Net change in fund balance 770,068 [452,075] [452,075] 1,222,143

Fund balance, beginning 2,356,425      [1,821,984]     [1,821,984]     4,178,409

Prior period adjustment 99,965 - - 99,965

Fund balance, beginning, restated 2,456,390 [1,821,984] [1,821,984] 4,278,374

Fund balance, ending 3,226,458$  [2,274,059]$  [2,274,059]$  5,500,517$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
      Taxes 179,906$  196,014$  196,014$  [16,108]$

Total revenues 179,906 196,014 196,014 [16,108]

Expenditures
  Contractual services 149,142         208,550         208,550         59,408           
  Commodities 3                    -                     -                     [3]                   
  Neighborhood revitalization - 11,881 11,881 11,881
Total expenditures 149,145 220,431 220,431 71,286

Net change in fund balances 30,761           [24,417]          [24,417]          55,178           

Fund balance, beginning 78,735 [38,787] [38,787] 117,522

Fund balance, ending 109,496$  [63,204]$  [63,204]$  172,700$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

UTILITY CHARGES FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues

   Miscellaneous 44$  -$  -$  44$

Total revenues 44 - - 44

Expenditures
  Transfer out 418 - - [418]

Total expenditures 418 - - [418]

Net change in fund balances [374]               -                     -                     [374]               

Fund balance, beginning 374 42,378 100,681 [100,307]

Fund balance, ending -$  42,378$  100,681$  [100,681]$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
      Taxes 48,884$         -$                   -$                   48,884$         
      Miscellaneous revenues 117,289 - - 117,289

Total revenues 166,173 - - 166,173

Expenditures
  Personnel services 39,369           -                     -                     [39,369]          
  Contractual services 142,787 - - [142,787]

Total expenditures 182,156 - - [182,156]

Net change in fund balances [15,983]          -$  -$  [15,983]$

Budgetary basis
  Fund balance, beginning 125,100

Budgetary basis fund balance, ending 109,117         

GAAP Adjustments:
  Accounts Receivable 652

Fund balance, ending 109,769$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

LIBRARY FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
Taxes 818,542$  833,622$  833,612$  [15,070]$

Total revenues 818,542 833,622 833,612 [15,070]

Expenditures
  Contractual services 831,875         760,000         800,000         [31,875]          
  Neighborhood revitalization - 53,093 53,093 53,093

Total expenditures 831,875 813,093 853,093 21,218

Net change in fund balances [13,333]          20,529           [19,481]          6,148             

Fund balance, beginning 13,333 36,619 20,834 [7,501]

Fund balance, ending -$  57,148$  1,353$  [1,353]$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

SPECIAL HIGHWAY FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
  Intergovernmental 628,698$  607,790$  607,790$  20,908$

Total revenues 628,698 607,790 607,790 20,908

Expenditures
  Contractual services 18,302 325,000 325,000 306,698

Total expenditures 18,302 325,000 325,000 306,698

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
  over [under] expenditures 610,396 282,790 282,790 327,606

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfer out - [400,000] [400,000] 400,000

Total other financing sources [uses] - [400,000] [400,000] 400,000

Net change in fund balances 610,396 [117,210] [117,210] 727,606

Fund balance, beginning 873,373         [204,630]        [204,630]        1,078,003

Prior period adjustment [43,589] - - [43,589]

Fund balance, beginning, restated 829,784 [204,630] [204,630] 1,034,414

Fund balance, ending 1,440,180$  [321,840]$  [321,840]$  1,762,020$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
58

205



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
      Taxes 140,146$       147,634$       147,634$       [7,488]$          
      Miscellaneous revenues 283 - - 283

Total revenues 140,429 147,634 147,634 [7,205]

Expenditures
  Commodities 35,833           20,000           20,000           [15,833]          
  Contractual 9,726             -                     -                     [9,726]            
  Capital outlay -                     143,500         143,500         143,500         
  Neighborhood revitalization - 9,046 9,046 9,046

Total expenditures 45,559 172,546 172,546 126,987

Net change in fund balances 94,870           [24,912]          [24,912]          119,782         

Fund balance, beginning 141,826 [1,902] [1,902] 143,728

Fund balance, ending 236,696$  [26,814]$  [26,814]$  263,510$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
      Taxes 76,569$  79,837$  79,837$  [3,268]$

Total revenues 76,569 79,837 79,837 [3,268]

Expenditures
  Personnel services 74,811           71,439           71,439           [3,372]            
  Commodities -                     30,000           30,000           30,000           
  Contractual services 6,602 35,000 35,000 28,398

Total expenditures 81,413 136,439 136,439 55,026

Net change in fund balances [4,844]            [56,602]          [56,602]          51,758           

Fund balance, beginning 132,349 [31,949] [31,949] 164,298

Fund balance, ending 127,505$  [88,551]$  [88,551]$  216,056$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]

Revenues
  Miscellaneous revenues 1,152,295$  100,000$  700,000$  452,295$

Total revenues 1,152,295 100,000 700,000 452,295

Expenditures
  Personnel services 19,204           18,984           18,984           [220]               
  Commodities 763,217         100,000         100,000         [663,217]        
  Contractual services 3,092             40,000           640,000         636,908         
  Capital outlay - 160,000 160,000 160,000

Total expenditures 785,513 318,984 918,984 133,471

Net change in fund balance 366,782         [218,984]        [218,984]        585,766

Fund balance, beginning 262,675 [18,382] [208,382] 471,057

Fund balance, ending 629,457$ [237,366]$ [427,366]$ 1,056,823$

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS 

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Rolling Hills Golf Fund - To account for the operation and maintenance of the municipal golf course. 

Spin City Skating Fund - To account for the operations and maintenance of a skating rink. 

Sanitation Fund – To account for the operation and maintenance of the sanitation system operated within the City. 
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Total
Nonmajor

Rolling Hills Spin City Proprietary
ASSETS Golf Skating Sanitation Funds
   Current assets:
    Cash and investments -$                   -$                   479,305$       479,305$
    Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
      Accounts - - 144,257 144,257
  Total current assets - - 623,562 623,562

   Capital assets:
   Depreciable capital assets:

      Capital assets -                     -                     990,247         990,247         
     Less: accumulated depreciation - - [540,454] [540,454]
  Total capital assets - - 449,793 449,793

Total assets -$  -$  1,073,355$  1,073,355$

Liabilities:
   Current liabilities
    Accounts payable -$                   -$                   53,037$         53,037$         
    Accrued payroll -                     -                     6,741             6,741             
    Current portion of leases payable - - - -
  Total current liabilities - - 59,778 59,778

  Noncurrent liabilities:
    Compensated absences payable -                     -                     9,526 9,526             
    Leases payable -                     -                     436,616         436,616         
    Due to other funds - - - -
  Total noncurrent liabilities - - 446,142 446,142

Total liabilities -$  -$  505,920$  505,920$

Net Position
    Invested in capital assets, net of related debt -$                   -$                   13,177$         13,177$         
    Unrestricted - - 554,258 554,258

Total net position -$  -$  567,435$  567,435$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2013

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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Total
Nonmajor

Rolling Hills Spin City Proprietary
Golf Skating Sanitation Funds

Operating revenues
Charges for services 324$              120,859$       1,455,036$    1,576,219$
Miscellaneous - 32,170 - 32,170

Total operating revenues 324 153,029 1,455,036 1,608,389

Operating expenses
  Personal services -                     90,602           356,161         446,763         
  Commodities -                     24,892           133,234         158,126         
  Contractual services -                     49,254           496,016         545,270         
  Depreciation - - 98,674 98,674

Total operating expenses - 164,748 1,084,085 1,248,833

Operating income [loss] 324 [11,719] 370,951 359,556

Nonoperating revenues [expenses]
Interest expense - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues [expenses] - - - -

Income [loss] before transfers 324 [11,719] 370,951 359,556

Transfers from [to] other funds
Transfers [out] - - [70,000] [70,000]

Total transfers - - [70,000] [70,000]

Change in net position 324 [11,719] 300,951 289,556

Net position, January 1 [324]               1,226,551      266,484         1,492,711

Prior period adjustment - [1,214,832] - [1,214,832]

Net position, January 1, beginning [324] 11,719 266,484 277,879

Net position, December 31 -$  -$  567,435$  567,435$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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Total
Nonmajor

Rolling Hills Spin City Proprietary
Golf Skating Sanitation Funds

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers and users 324$                   120,859$       1,489,356$    1,610,539$    
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services [324]                    [88,205]          [616,363]        [704,892]        
Cash paid to employees -                          [93,278]          [345,252]        [438,530]        
Other operating receipts - 32,170 - 32,170

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities - [28,454] 527,741 499,287

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principal payments - capital lease -                        - [120,091]        [120,091]
Purchase and construction of capital assets - - [4,950] [4,950]

Net cash provided by [used in] capital
 and related financing activities - - [125,041] [125,041]

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
   Transfer [out] - - [70,000] [70,000]

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent -                          [28,454]          332,700         304,246         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning - 28,454 146,605 175,059

Cash and cash equivalents, ending -$  -$  479,305$  479,305$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
65

212



Total
Nonmajor

Rolling Hills Spin City Proprietary
Golf Skating Sanitation Funds

Reconciliation of operating [loss] income to net cash
  provided by [used in] operating activities
Operating income [loss] 324$            [11,719]$      370,951$         359,556$     

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities
Depreciation expense -                   -                  98,674            98,674         
[Increase] decrease in accounts receivable -                   -                  34,320            34,320         
Increase [decrease] in accounts payable [324]             [14,059]        12,887            [1,496]          
Increase [decrease] in compensated absences -                   -                  9,526              9,526           
Increase [decrease] in accrued wages - [2,676] 1,383 [1,293]

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities -$  [28,454]$  527,741$  499,287$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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Olivia
Trust Farms Total
and Development Agency

ASSETS Agency Fund Fund Funds

Cash 1,142$           381,099$       382,241$       
Accounts receivable -                     3,670             3,670             
Due from other funds - 270,000 270,000

Total assets 1,142$  654,769$  655,911$

Liabilities
    Due to others 1,142$  654,769$  655,911$

Total liabilities 1,142$  654,769$  655,911$

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUNDS

December 31, 2013

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Balance Balance
Trust and Agency Fund January 1, December 31,

ASSETS 2013 Additions Deductions 2013

Cash and cash equivalents -$  1,850$  708$  1,142$

Total assets -$  1,850$  708$  1,142$

LIABILITIES

Due to others -$  1,850$  708$  1,142$

Total liabilities -$  1,850$  708$  1,142$

Restated
Balance Balance

Olivia Farms Development Fund January 1, December 31,
ASSETS 2013 Additions Deductions 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 370,089$       11,010$         -$                   381,099$       
Accounts receivable -                     3,670             -                     3,670             
Due from other funds 270,000 - - 270,000

Total assets 640,089$  14,680$  -$  654,769$

LIABILITIES

Due to other funds 640,089$  14,680$  -$  654,769$

Total liabilities 640,089$  14,680$  -$  654,769$

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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Statistical Section 
(Unaudited) 

This part of the City of Junction City’s financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding 
what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says 
about the City’s overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance 
and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue source, 
the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of 
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economical Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the City’s financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the 
City’s financial report related to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Annual Financial Report 
for the relevant year.   
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 (UNAUDITED)

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Expenses
Governmental Activities
   General government 5,138,247$       11,839,659$     7,293,604$       6,842,828$       11,965,528$      6,181,566$        5,078,582$        3,216,686$        2,972,338$       2,818,453$         
   Public safety 5,880,245         5,854,063         6,621,168         6,675,397         7,410,915          7,938,190          7,016,947          8,094,613          7,466,537         9,247,065
   Public works 3,188,705         4,560,855         5,059,327         8,488,528         10,061,261        9,097,814          8,924,171          4,756,348          6,220,145         5,013,275
   Culture and recreation 1,173,781         1,580,500         1,695,816         2,060,490         1,744,522          1,005,475          654,829             1,030,077          1,414,550         1,284,881
   Economic Development -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        238,548             742,286             735,663             975,615            1,264,637
   Public health and sanitation -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         1,134,918          1,803,687          2,034,862         2,053,932
   Payments on other obligations (see note) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         -                         1,516,382          1,855,634         655,548
   Interest long term debt - - - - - 6,210,775 5,721,931 6,698,600 6,771,428 6,568,899
Total governmental expenses 15,380,978 23,835,077 20,669,915 24,067,243 31,182,226 30,672,368 29,273,664 27,852,056 29,711,109 28,906,690

Business-type activities
   Water and sewer 5,574,030         5,843,858         5,900,823         6,509,210         6,489,970          7,640,329          7,210,683          7,356,961          7,207,927         7,740,690
   Rolling hills golf 555,660            525,259            523,165            543,841            548,355             555,128             477,042             332,836             -                        -
   Sanitation 806,518            1,026,459         835,574            935,241            1,005,900          1,236,329          1,366,544          1,440,358          1,268,602         1,084,085
   Internal Services 21,755              -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         -                         -                         -                        -
   Storm water -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        253,430             246,341             408,349             462,200            498,018
   Spin City skating - - - - 230,156 233,779 192,967 179,062 257,592 164,748
Total business-type activities expense 6,957,963 7,395,576 7,259,562 7,988,292 8,274,381 9,918,995 9,493,577 9,717,566 9,196,321 9,487,541

Total primary government expenses 22,338,941$  31,230,653$  27,929,477$ 32,055,535$ 39,456,607$ 40,591,363$ 38,767,241$ 37,569,622$  38,907,430$  38,394,231$

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
   Charges for Service 1,339,348$       1,549,052$       2,988,074$       2,828,266$       2,144,822$        2,083,131$        2,505,036$        3,032,305$        3,693,576$       3,460,191$         
   Intergovernmental 965,626            754,690            934,385            499,115            484,660             -                         -                         -                         -                        -
   Operating grants and contributions 521,115            941,948            472,904            363,903            2,335,515          3,627,056          1,669,496          1,626,703          1,634,111         1,769,732
   Other 2,163,105         1,818,957         1,407,233         1,896,914         451,597             -                         -                         -                         -                        -
   Capital grants and contributions - 59,426 5,960 4,385,178 5,749,283 33,674,775 4,875,055 6,432,843 2,518,706 481,939
Total governmental activities program revenue 4,989,194 5,124,073 5,808,556 9,973,376 11,165,877 39,384,962 9,049,587 11,091,851 7,846,393 5,711,862

Business-type activities:
   Charges for service
      Water and sewer 5,574,030         5,271,541         6,112,332         6,918,957         6,948,085          7,154,180          7,857,651          8,527,278          9,747,283         9,356,857
      Rolling hills golf 555,660            582,748            512,630            514,797            534,189             487,340             437,633             378,200             -                        -
      Sanitation 806,518            1,025,920         834,419            899,013            972,972             1,331,658          1,263,252          1,457,127          1,461,004         1,455,036
      Storm water -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        464,447             722,161             836,450             781,779            780,995
      Spin City skating -                        -                        -                        -                        234,871             173,469             167,643             143,004             143,203            121,183
   Capital grants and contributions - - - - - 612,477 - - - -
Total business-type activities program revenues 6,936,208 6,880,209 7,459,381 8,332,767 8,690,117 10,223,571 10,448,340 11,342,059 12,133,269 11,714,071

Total primary government program revenues 11,925,402$  12,004,282$  13,267,937$ 18,306,143$ 19,855,994$ 49,608,533$ 19,497,927$ 22,433,910$  19,979,662$  17,425,933$

Net (Expense) Revenue
   Governmental activities [10,391,784]$    [18,711,004]$    [14,861,359]$    [14,093,867]$    [20,016,349]$     8,712,594$        [20,224,077]$     [16,760,205]$     [21,864,716]$    [23,194,828]$      
   Business-type activities [21,755] [515,367] 199,819 344,475 415,736 304,576 954,763 1,624,493 2,936,948 2,226,530
Total primary government net expense [10,413,539]$  [19,226,371]$  [14,661,540]$ [13,749,392]$ [19,600,613]$ 9,017,170$ [19,269,314]$ [15,135,712]$  [18,927,768]$  [20,968,298]$

General Revenues and other Changes In Net Position
Governmental activities:
   Taxes
       Property taxes 5,029,206$       5,163,701$       5,245,456$       6,397,274$       6,733,809$        8,309,953$        8,892,436$        9,027,993$        9,937,633$       9,470,337$         
       Sales taxes 4,434,424         4,523,234         5,581,003         5,911,908         6,109,101          6,194,501          6,790,642          10,578,965        10,915,013       11,143,399
       Franchise taxes 1,225,289         1,316,876         1,388,710         1,527,318         1,667,953          1,700,570          1,807,406          1,769,991          1,833,692         1,882,737
       Motor vehicle taxes 717,496            744,830            790,008            881,400            744,210             -                         -                         -                         -                        -
       Payment in lieu of property tax -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        26,026               18,080               15,537               16,406              14,137
   Investment earnings 20,239              91,918              154,840            -                        -                        78,974               487,162             115,395             586,731            481,805
   Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        15,575               1,226,273          1,564,746          2,268,414         2,342,981
   Transfers 60,000 50,000 438,262 - 1,950,000 1,122,955 159,000 389,185 1,452,824 1,522,500
Total governmental activities 11,486,654 11,890,559 13,598,279 14,717,900 17,205,073 17,448,554 19,380,999 23,461,812 27,010,713 26,857,896

Business-type activities
   Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        212                    305,358             296,566             408,889            253,963
   Transfers [60,000] [50,000] [438,262] - [1,950,000] [1,122,955] [159,000] [389,185] [1,452,824] [1,522,500]

Total business-type activities [60,000] [50,000] [438,262] -$ [1,950,000] [1,122,743] 146,358 [92,619] [1,043,935] [1,268,537]

Total primary government 11,426,654$  11,840,559$  13,160,017$ 14,717,900$ 15,255,073$ 16,325,811$ 19,527,357$ 23,369,193$  25,966,778$  25,589,359$

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities 1,094,870$       [6,820,445]$      [1,263,080]$      624,033$          [2,811,276]$       26,161,148$      [843,078]$          6,701,607$        5,145,997$       3,663,068$         
Business-type activities [81,755] [565,367] [238,443] 344,475 [1,534,264] [818,167] 1,101,121 1,531,874 1,893,013 957,993

Total primary government 1,013,115$  [7,385,812]$  [1,501,523]$ 968,508$ [4,345,540]$ 25,342,981$ 258,043$ 8,233,481$  7,039,010$ 4,621,061$

Note (1):  The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003
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(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Water Meter Wastewater Total
Year Taps Sold Taps Sold Taps
2004 n/a n/a n/a
2005 n/a n/a n/a
2006 n/a n/a n/a
2007 n/a n/a n/a
2008 n/a n/a n/a
2009 127 123 250
2010 126 125 251
2011 98 100 198
2012 100 99 199
2013 28 23 51

Source: City of Junction City Utility Department
n/a - information is not available

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
ANNUAL WATER AND WASTEWATER TAP SALES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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(UNAUDITED)

Amount Percent Amount Percent
Customer

Amour Swift-Eckrich 210,369.61$        4.93% Armour Eckrich 460,504.95$        1.04%
Grandview Plaza 124,487.92          2.92% Geary Community Hospital 55,495.30            0.32%
Geary Community Hospital 72,860.23            1.71% Penn Enterprises 19,452.30            0.24%
Penn Enterprises 28,246.45            0.66% Green Park Apartments 14,888.50            0.23%
Valley View Senior Life 24,958.53            0.58% Armour Eckrich (2nd meter) 11,989.10            0.22%
Green Park Apartments 22,623.91            0.53% Sapp Brothers Car Wash 10,714.20            0.21%
Rural Water District #1 20,240.08            0.47% Cedar Point Car Wash 9,199.90              0.21%
Armour Eckrich 14,605.96            0.34% Hickory Hills Residents 8,973.80              0.20%
Sapp Brothers Car Wash 14,006.35            0.33% Winegardner & Hammons 7,510.80              0.20%
Cedar Point Car Wash 13,301.46 0.31% Foot Locker 6,895.20 0.16%
         Subtotal (10 largest) 545,700.50$        12.78%        Subtotal (10 largest) 605,624.05$        3.03%

Balance from other customers 3,724,080.57$  87.22% Balance from other customers 4,027,710.86$  96.97%

Grand Total 4,269,781.07$  100.00% Grand Total 4,633,334.91$  100.00%

Note; Information from nine years ago is not available.

Sewer RevenueWater Revenue

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
TEN LARGEST UTILITY CUSTOMERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2013
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(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Basic Debt Total Geary State of
Year Rate Service Library Direct Rate USD County Kansas Total

2004 36.966     14.248     4.581       55.795     40.177     53.714     1.500       151.186

2005 36.166     15.001     4.194       55.361     38.982     56.128     1.500       151.971

2006 29.692     13.980     4.064       47.736     46.524     55.741     1.500       151.501

2007 38.653     14.961     3.780       47.394     44.695     50.468     1.500       144.057

2008 27.911     17.032     3.329       48.272     43.261     46.663     1.500       139.696

2009 24.314     20.494     3.666       48.474     45.566     49.598     1.500       145.138

2010 26.840     16.750     4.708       48.282     45.445     53.126     1.500       148.353

2011 10.589     35.138     4.623       50.350     45.499     53.390     1.500       150.605

2012 10.233     33.172     4.436       47.841     45.823     52.205     1.500       147.369

2013 14.324     28.875     4.436       47.635     45.961     54.084     1.500       149.180

Source: Geary County Clerk

City Direct Rates

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION)
LAST TEN TAX YEARS
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(UNAUDITED)

Estimated
Share of

Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Government Unit: Outstanding Applicable Debt

  Geary County 32,850,000$        81% 26,608,500$        
  U.S.D. #475 School District 28,780,000 81% 23,311,800

Total Estimated Overlapping Debt 61,630,000          49,920,300          

DIRECT DEBT
   City of Junction City 143,406,614 100% 143,406,614

DIRECT & ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT 205,036,614$  193,326,914$

Source:  Office of Geary County Clerk

(1)  Information represents the share of the respective debt which are obligations of the 
      citizens of Junction City.

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013
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(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
Year

Utility
Service
Charges

Less:
Operating
Expenses

Net
Available
Revenue

Debt Service
Principal  &

Interest  Coverage

2004 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2005 5,824,026$       4,729,261$       1,094,765$       1,262,284$       87%
2006 6,112,332         4,062,138         2,050,194         1,379,923         149%
2007 7,152,798         5,110,181         2,042,617         1,448,373         141%
2008 6,939,622         4,427,980         2,511,642         1,608,536         156%
2009 7,665,298         6,131,616         1,533,682         1,915,830         80%
2010 8,009,136         7,712,856         1,974,702         1,678,422         118%
2011 8,719,225         5,180,850         3,538,375         896,655            395%
2012 10,004,859       5,935,892         4,068,967         1,323,232         307%
2013 9,580,170         6,445,000         3,135,170         2,049,426         153%

n/a - information is not available

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

b. Consideration of Real Estate Lien Subordination Agreement.  
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August 6, 2013 Meeting 

From:  Cheryl S. Beatty, Interim Manager/Finance Director 

To:  City Commissioners  

Subject:  Real Estate Lien Subordination Agreement  Junction City Bowl, Inc. 

Objective:  Action taken on Real Estate Lien Subordination Agreement. 

Explanation of Issue: -
term note with Millennium Bank to resolve a short-term cash flow issue for their business.  The 
bank is willing to issue the loan if the City Commission is willing to approve a Real Estate 

It 
 Spring and they 

are wanting to honor that commitment and are restructuring as part of their ongoing efforts to be a 
successful business.    

The CDBG outstanding loan with the city is a $65,000 loan issued as an interest only loan with a 
balloon payment due on May 9, 2017 for the principal.  The account is currently 4 months behind 
on their monthly payments for the CDBG loan totaling $866.68.   

Budget Impact:  No current budget impact.  The CDBG fund is a separate fund that does not 
impact city operations. 

Action:  It appears that the City Commission may approve, deny, or table the request. 

Recommendation:  No recommendation from staff. 

Motion:  I move to (approve, deny or table) the Real Estate Lien Subordination Agreement.  
Second by ______________. 

Attachments:  Real Estate Lien Subordination Agreement 
  CDBG Loan Agreement with Ellison, aka Junction City Big Bowl, Inc. 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

c. Public Hearing & Consideration of 2015 budget for publication. 

  

271



 

Meeting Date: August 5, 2014 

From:  Cheryl S. Beatty, Interim Manager/Finance Director 

To:  City Commissioners  

Subject:  2015 Budget  Request Approval for Publication and Set Public Hearing 

Objective:  Presentation of 2015 budget for approval to publish and set public hearing. 

Explanation of Issue:   

The 2015 Budget was drafted and reviewed by the City Commission in multiple budget work 
sessions.  This budget was based on the following targeted goals: 

1. Maintain services. 
2. Fiscally responsible while providing quality services, protect infrastructure, and address capital 

needs without increasing the mill levy. 
3. Provide additional general fund funding for street maintenance. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  The above goals were met and we request approval to publish the 
budget as presented and set the public hearing for August 19, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall 
Commission meeting room, 700 North Jefferson Street. 
 
Motion:  I,______________, move to (accept, modify, or deny) the budget as presented for 
publication and set the public hearing for August 19, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Commission 
meeting room at City Hall. 
 
Attachment:  2015 Proposed Budget  
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

d. Consideration of Quality Trust Revolving Loan. 
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August 5, 2014 Meeting 

From:  Cheryl S. Beatty, Interim City Manager 

To:  City Commissioners 

Subject:  CDBG Application for Funding  Quality Trust, Incorporated 

Objective:  Accept or deny CDBG Loan application for Quality Trust, Inc., owner Larry Ruiz. 

Explanation of Issue: The city commissioners are to take the final action on any CDBG Loan 
application (see attached policy and procedures). The Junction City Economic Development 
application review committee is recommending denial of this application as per letters dated March 
20 and June 5, which means the City Commission may wish to complete a more detailed review of 
the application to determine if they agree or disagree with the recommendation.   

During the meeting we suggest that the owner be allowed the opportunity to make a short 
presentation or plea statement regarding his application.  Then the City Commission may take 
action to deny or accept the application for a CDBG Loan for Quality Trust Incorporated. 

Budget Impact: The CDBG Revolving Loan Fund as of June 30, 2014, had a cash balance of 
$270,970.65. The CDBG Loan Program funds are State funds that the city manages as a revolving 
loan fund for purpose of economic development. 

Action:  It appears that the City Commission may approve, deny, modify, or table the request for 
award of a CDBG loan to Quality Trust Incorporated. 

Recommendation:  City staff recommends denial the award of bid to Quality Trust 
Incorporated. 

Motion:  I move to (approve, deny or modify) the request for a CDBG Loan to Quality Trust 
Incorporated.  Second by ______________. 

Attachments:  Loan Application (Confidential) 
  CDBG Loan Policy and Procedures 
  EDC Loan Committee Review Reports. 
  Letter from Weary Davis on Behalf of th
     Association 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

e. Consideration of award of bid for the expansion & renovation of 701 N. Jefferson. 
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7-27-2014 

 Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 

Cheryl Beatty, City Manager 

 

Objective:  To award a bid for Renovation & Expansion project at 701 N. Jefferson 

Explanation of Issue:  The City opened bids for the project on July 22, 2014. The lowest 
base bid was from Cheney Construction in the amount of $902,945.00. Cheney's bid is 

 bid was from BHS 

Estimate. The remaining three bidders were within $35,000 of the BHS bid. We received 
letters from the two low bidders stating their intent to honor their bid amounts. 

The contractors provided a schedule of values and subcontractor lists. Staff has enclosed 
those documents. The attached Architect letter addresses the large cost difference between 
Cheney Construction & other contractors. It is staff recommendation to include the following 
added alternatives: 

#1: Air Lock Entry Vestibule 

#3: Additional Brick Veneer 

#4: Carpet Tile 

#8: Commission Desk Deletion & Substitution 

Budget Impact:  The expenditure would be made from the capital improvement fund not to 
exceed the bid amount approved by the Commission. 

Recommendation: The recommendation of City staff is to accept the low bid with Cheney 
Construction. While there are noted discrepancies with the bid, the low amount is significant. 
Additionally, Cheney Construction has provided a letter stating their willingness to accept a 
contract for their bid amounts. 

Alternatives:  It appears the Commission has the following alternatives concerning the 
issues at hand. The Commission may: 

1. Allow for the noted discrepancy(s) in the Cheney Construction bid and 
subcontractor material supplier acquisition process and award the project to 
Cheney Construction Inc. in an amount not to exceed 919,382.00. 

2. Reject the Cheney Construction bid as not meeting the project plans, 
specifications and subcontractor material supplier acquisition requirements and 
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an amount not to exceed $1,080,348.00. 

3. Consider other options the Commission may wish. 

Enclosures:  Architect letter, Bid Tabulation Sheet, Cheney Construction Letter, schedule 
of values, and major subcontractors, BHS Construction Letter, schedule of values, and 
major subcontractors. 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

f. Consideration and Approval of a Contract Amendment - Storm Water 
Management Master Plan Public Outreach Program. 
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August 5, 2014 

 Gregory S. McCaffery, Municipal Services Director 

City Commission and Cheryl Beatty, Interim City Manager 

 

Objective: Storm Water Management Master Plan Contract Amendment  Public 
Stakeholder Outreach Meetings Program. 

 
Explanation of Issue: A workshop was held with the City Commission on July 8, 2014, 
whereby a pres Storm Water Management Master Plan was 
provided which outlined the s, regulatory needs & requirements, capital 
improvement preliminary costs, and options towards funding of this infrastructure system 
were provided. 
 
AMEC Environment and Infrastructure, Inc. (AMEC), the consultant on the project, 
outlined the physical storm water system conditions; the storm water program 
operations & maintenance; water quality regulations; and the funding needs for 
immediate short & long term projects. A major part of this SWMMP was to set in place 

storm system, with a sound Financial 
Business Plan.  
 
Currently the rate structure and financing methodology which has been in place for the 

Storm Water Fund has been determined to be inconsistent, non-uniformed and also 
leaning towards a financial short fall toward the future needed regulatory, operation & 

ystem; Therefore an entirely new rate 
structure through a Financial Business Plan has become apparent, and is being developed 
as a part of the final SWMMP. 
 
After the presentation is was the general consensus to proceed with Option 2, Regulatory 
Compliance, Minimal CIP and Fully Funded Operation & Maintenance of the system, as 

storm water needs, and still being budget restrictive. 
 
Additionally, as part of the presentation, an overview of the use of a pervious/ impervious 
methodology was presented to the City Commission at the workshop, as a sound means in 
which to assess all users of the system. After general concurrence of the City Commission, 
it was the consensus to look to develop a proposal from AEMC towards providing possible 
stakeholder meetings, which would outline the City storm water needs and the financing 
methods towards implementation. City staff has had various discussions with AMEC 
towards this option, and costs for these community outreach sessions were developed. 
Three options are available in which to generally address this and be able to move towards 
the finalizing of the SWMMP, and these are outlined below: 
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Option 1 
A series of stakeholder meetings (4 meetings), segmenting towards the various major 
groups within the rate methodology could be held; consensus of the proposed rate 
methodology would be obtained through complied feedback. In summary the stakeholder 
meetings would entail an updated/ detailed orientated PowerPoint presentation, poster 
board materials, Q & A sessions and AMEC & City staff on hand to address comments and 
compile feedback. The meetings would be designed for more to obtain feedback.  A fill-out 
survey would be used, and one would walk stakeholder groups/ general public through the 
need for the stormwater fee (Emergency CIP, O&M, and Regulatory Compliance), the 
concept of rate equity, and then explain the survey. Once completed, AMEC staff would 
consolidate comments and develop a presentation to the City Commission of options 
towards various modifications to the pervious/ impervious rate methodology. Thereafter, 
City staff would bring before the City Commission a recommendation for the adoption of 
the following: The final SWMMP, a Financial Business Plan and a Rate Structure (based 
on the stakeholder feedback). An AMEC draft scope of work (see attached), with a 
preliminary proposal costs of $24,260 for their involvement within this option has been 
developed, and is attached. 

 
Option 2 
This option would look to continue with the original Scope of Work for the SWMMP, 
development of a Financial Business Plan and rate structure, however a public 
presentation on the proposed funding methodology, system needs and overall program 
would be provided prior to final presentation by City staff before the City Commission for 
the adoption of the final SWMMP, Financial Business Plan and Rate Structure. This option 
will share the overall project to the general public; however no detailed assessment of the 
funding/ rate methodology will be developed towards use in the finalizing of the 
recommendation to the City Commission. A Question and Answer portion would be a part 
of this, and would be complied for the City Commission use. This option would also provide 
a good community information means on the program. A cost of development and holding 
this meeting, with various boards, presentation materials, staffing from AMEC would be in 
the range of $6-7,000, would entail minimal items from the Option 1 proposal above.  
 
Option 3 
Continue with the original project scope of work, whereby AMEC will develop a sound 
Financial Business Plan, with two rate structure options, which will use the pervious/ 
impervious methodology. One option would use a Rate Cap for large users and one would 
provide without a Rate Cap option, however both will address the costs for the Option 2, 
Regulatory Compliance, Minimal CIP and Fully Funded Operation & Maintenance of the 
system and s. 
This option would entail City staff presenting the City Commission a recommendation for 
the adoption of the following; the final SWMMP, a Financial Business Plan and one of two 
Rate Structures at a future City Commission meeting, without public input outside of the 
normal City Commission meetings. No additional costs would be incurred for this option. 
 
Budget Impact: Funding this contract amendment is available within the Storm Water 
Fund and would be subject to the final option approved. 
 
Alternatives: The City Commission may approve, modify, table or deny the contract 
amendment with AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the contract amendment to AMEC 
Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. for the stakeholder meetings, whereby feedback and 
input can be gained and used towards the final Financial Business Plan  
Storm Water management Master Plan, in amount not to exceed $24,260, as presented. 
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Suggested Motion: Commissioner     moves to approve the contract 
amendment to AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. in the amount of $24,260 for the 
Public Stakeholder Outreach Meetings Program, for a new contract amount not to exceed 
$277,365 for the completion of the City Storm Water Management Master Plan, as 
presented.   
 
 
Enclosures:   Storm Water Management Master Plan  Public Stakeholder Outreach  
  Meetings Program  AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. Proposal 
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Backup material for agenda item: 
 

g. Consideration and approval of a award of bid airport fuel containment facility. 
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Aug. 5, 2014 

 Gregory S. McCaffery, Municipal Services Director 

Cheryl Beatty, Interim City Manager and City Commissioners   

 

Objective: The Consideration and Approval of Award of Bid for Construction of a Fuel 
Containment Facility out at the Airport. 
 
Explanation of Issue: The City received a Notice of Potential (NOP) Violation from the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), back in 2012, regarding the lack of a proper 
containment structure in which to store the mobile refueling trucks at the municipal airport. 
Based on this letter City staff applied for a grant from Kansas Department of Transportation 
(KDOT) for part of the construction funding (construction and inspection costs) to install a 
fuel containment  facility..  
 
Through Albert Benesch Company a design and bid letting was completed on July 9, 2014. 
Several contractors were direct solicited for the work; an advertisement was place within 
The Daily Union, and on the City website. No bids were received. A second bid 
advertisement, July 25, 2014, was held with direct solicitation of twenty (20) contractors for 
this work, with  six (6) contractors obtaining plans, and only one bid being received. A 
summary of the bid solicitation/ opening is enclosed for review. The qualified bid from R. M. 
Baril General Contractor, Inc., Manhattan, KS was in the amount of $38,220.90 and was 

5). R. M. Baril references were checked and it 
was found they have completed similar type projects within other communities, therefore 
City staff is recommending to proceed with the project award of this project at this time, 
given the lack of bids being o
and also expend the KDOT grant funds.  
 
Should the City Commission approve the award it is anticipated the project will be 
completed within the next 45 days. 
 
Budget Impact:  The bid from R. M. Baril is $38,220.90, of which $9,550.00 will be covered 
through the KDOT grant. The balance of $28,670.90 would be paid through the Airport 
Fund budget. Further, as this project was originally budgeted within 2013 budget, a year 
end budget amendment will be necessary as a part of this project award. 
 
Alternatives: The City Commission may approve, table, modify and not approve the 
contract award for the fuel containment facility. 
 
Recommendation: City staff recommends the City Commission to approval the award of 
bid to R. M. Baril General Contractor, Inc. in the amount of $38,220.90 for construction of 
the airport fuel containment facility. 
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Suggested Motion:  Commissioner     moves to approve award of bid 
to R. M. Baril General Contractor, Inc. of Manhattan, KS in the amount of $38,220.90 for 
construction of an airport fuel containment facility. 

 
Enclosures:   Airport Fuel Containment Facility - Bid Summary 

Airport Fuel Containment Facility - Bid Tabulation  
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Item No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total
2 4" Skip White 65,700 LF $                $                
3 4" Solid White 23,065 LF $                $                
4 4" Skip Yellow 49,200 LF $                $                
5 4" Solid Yellow 45,450 LF $                $                
6 4" Solid Double Yellow 80,005 LF $                $                

7
12" Solid White 
(Runway Center Line) 3,225 LF $                $                

Bid Schedule

Bid Total:   

433



D
at

e:
7/

25
/2

01
4

Ti
m

e:
10

:0
0 

A.
M

.

Ite
m

 N
o.

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Q
ua

nt
ity

U
ni

t
U

ni
t P

ric
e

To
ta

l
U

ni
t P

ric
e

To
ta

l
1

M
ob

iliz
at

io
n

1
LS

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,8

50
.0

0
$2

,8
50

.0
0

2
C

le
ar

in
g 

an
d 

G
ru

bb
in

g
1

LS
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$9

75
.0

0
$9

75
.0

0
3

P
er

m
an

en
t S

ee
di

ng
1

LS
$7

50
.0

0
$7

50
.0

0
$9

08
.0

0
$9

08
.0

0
4

Te
m

pr
ar

y 
Tr

af
fic

 C
on

tro
l

1
LS

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,8

60
.0

0
$2

,8
60

.0
0

5
C

ro
ck

 E
xc

av
at

io
n

20
C

Y
$5

0.
00

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$5

9.
00

$1
,1

80
.0

0
6

E
xc

av
tio

n
14

5
C

Y
$1

5.
00

$2
,1

75
.0

0
$7

.0
0

$1
,0

15
.0

0
7

To
ps

oi
l a

nd
 S

ee
di

ng
1

LS
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$9

50
.0

0
$9

50
.0

0
8

C
on

cr
et

e 
Pa

ve
m

en
t (

6"
)

30
3

S
Y

$5
5.

00
$1

6,
66

5.
00

$6
9.

00
$2

0,
90

7.
00

9
C

on
cr

et
e 

C
ur

b 
(M

on
ol

ith
ic

)
12

0
LF

$1
5.

00
$1

,8
00

.0
0

$1
6.

07
$1

,9
28

.4
0

10
A

gg
re

ga
te

 B
as

e 
(6

")
(A

B
-3

)
32

5
S

Y
$1

0.
00

$3
,2

50
.0

0
$1

0.
50

$3
,4

12
.5

0
11

C
om

pa
ct

io
n 

S
ub

ba
se

 (8
")

32
5

S
Y

$5
.0

0
$1

,6
25

.0
0

$3
.8

0
$1

,2
35

.0
0

$3
7,

76
5.

00
$3

8,
22

0.
90

C
ity

 o
f J

un
ct

io
n 

C
ity

B
id

 T
ot

al
:  

 

En
gi

ne
er

's
 E

st
im

at
e

R
.M

. B
ar

il

B
id

 T
ab

ul
at

io
n 

- 2
01

4 
A

irp
or

t F
ue

l C
on

ta
in

m
en

t F
ac

ili
ty

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

43
4



Backup material for agenda item: 
 

h. Consideration of Ordinance G-3128 a request to rezone certain property in 
Junction City, Kansas, located at 807 Barnhill Circle. 
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August 5, 2014 

David L. Yearout, AICP, CFM, Director of Planning and Zoning 

City Commission & Cheryl Beatty, Interim City Manager

Case No. Z-07-01-14  Request to rezone certain property in Junction City, Kansas, 
located at 807 Barnhill Circle (S-3128) 

Issue:  Consideration of the request of Geary County Farm Bureau, owners, to rezone property located at 

Commercial District.  The property is pending a sale for use as an office for a heating and cooling 
contractor. 
 
Explanation of Issue:  The applicant is pursuing the rezoning to complete the sale of the property so the 

.  
General Commercial District as suggested by staff at the time of the submittal of the application.  As 

in question had been used for the office operations for the Farm Bureau for many years.  However, the 

accommodate the proposed use, but would also make this property more marketable for a wider variety 
of uses in the future. 
 
As noted in the attached staff report, the major concern for the rezoning was the broadened list of uses 
permitted; especially with the property so close to the High School.  However, as noted in the staff report, 
the building in question is less than 200 feet from the closest High School building, which precludes uses 
that would serve alcohol.  As such, most of the concerns are mitigated by that fact.   
 
Also, staff recommended the 

 
 
The Metropolitan Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 10, 2014, to consider this request.  
By unanimous vote, the MPC has recommended the rezoning from the  
District  Commercial District be granted.  
 
Alternatives:  In accordance with K.S.A. 12-757, the City Commission has the following alternatives for a 
rezoning application on first appearance: 
 

1. To accept the recommendation of the MPC and approve the Ordinance, thereby granting 
the rezoning.  

 
2. Modify the recommendation of the Metropolitan Planning Commission by a 2/3 majority 

vote and approve the Ordinance as so modified, thereby granting the rezoning subject to 
said changes. 

 
3. Return the recommendation to the Metropolitan Planning Commission for further 

consideration, specifying the items, concerns or issues with said recommendation. 
 
4. Disapprove the recommendation of the Metropolitan Planning Commission by a 2/3 

majority vote and deny the rezoning. 
 
Special Considerations:  There were some comments from surrounding property owners concerning 
this request.  Upon explanation of the proposal, no objections were given. 436



 
Staff Recommendation:  Accept the recommendation of the MPC and approve the Ordinance that will 
grant the rezoning from  District  Commercial District of the 
property described within the ordinance. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
 

Commissioner ___________________ moved that the recommendation of the Metropolitan 
Planning Commission be accepted and that Ordinance No. S-3128, an ordinance granting the rezoning 
from  District  Commercial District of certain property located 
at 807 Barnhill Circle, Junction City, Kansas, be approved. 
 
 Commissioner ___________________ seconded the motion. 
 
Enclosures:   
 
MPC Minutes of July 10, 2014 
Staff Report 
Ordinance S-3128 
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ORDINANCE NO. S-3128 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
RESTRICTED COMMERCIAL  COMMECIAL 
DISTRICT. 

 
WHEREAS, application has been made by Geary County Farm Bureau, owner, to rezone 

certain property generally located at 807 Barnhill Circle, 
 Commercial District; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Planning Commission of Junction City, Milford and Geary 

County conducted a public hearing on Case No. Z-07-01-14, following published notification in 
accordance with K.S.A. 12-741, et. seq., as amended, on June 19, 2014; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Planning Commission has recommended the City 
Commission of the City of Junction City, Kansas, approve the rezoning of said property in 
Junction City, Kansas
District; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS, THAT:  
 

Section 1. The following described property is hereby rezoned  
Commercial District: 
 

Lot 3 of the Replat of Barnhill  Addition to the City of Junction City, 
Geary County, Kansas. 

 
Section 2. The Zoning Administrator of the City of Junction City, Kansas, is hereby 

ordered and directed to cause said designation to be made on the Official Zoning Map of said 
City in his custody and to show the property herein described to be zoned as Service 
Commercial (CS). 
 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication 
once in the official city newspaper. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 5th DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
MICHAEL L. RYAN, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
TYLER FICKEN, CITY CLERK 
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                       JUNCTION CITY/MILFORD/GEARY COUNTY 
                        METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION  
                                    BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
                                                               STAFF REPORT 

 
July 10, 2014 

 
TO:                         Metropolitan Planning Commission / Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
FM: David L. Yearout, AICP, CFM, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT: Z-07-01-14  Request to rezone certain property generally located at 807 

Barnhill Circle, Junction 
 Commercial District. 

 
 
This is the request of Geary County Farm Bureau, owners, to rezone property located at 807 Barnhill 

District.  The property is pending a sale for use as a location for C&K Construction, which was proposing 
to use a residential property at 1306 Johnson Drive for the business.  That Special Use Permit was 
recommended for denial by the MPC at the June meeting and it was subsequently withdrawn by the 
applicant. 
 
The district proposed by this application was recommended by staff to the applicant because it clearly 

zoning districts are relatively the same 
equipment sales a

these two districts. 
 
With respect to the intended use of th
appears to be more in line with the apparent intent of the purchaser, Mr. Osbourn.  He has advised staff 

the parking of some trailers and trucks for the business.  The same performance requirement for 
screening/fencing adjacent to residential property is required in both zoning districts.  The rear property 
line of this lot abuts residentially zoned property, which will require the installation of an appropriate 
screening fence. 
 
Staff would prefer to have the option to recommend a Special Use Permit rather than a full rezoning of 

ct.  However, the current language in the 
Zoning Regulations does not allow that alternative and staff is proceeding on this request under the 
language of the current regulations.  There is a desire to amend the Zoning Regulations to include 
language that would allow this type of case to be considered as a Special Use Permit, which would allow 

request to approve, deny or modify a rezoning application.  If the MPC wishes to consider this course of 
action rather than the rezoning, a motion to amend the Zoning Regulations could be considered at the 
August meeting and this case could be reconsidered as a Special Use Permit, which might make the 
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 2 

change more palatable.  Saying that, staff will provide comments and a recommendation under the current 
language for consideration as presented. 
 

that exist on the surrounding properties and assure the surrounding landowners and the community at 
large the appropriate balance between land uses is being protected.  The Junction City Zoning Regulations 
provide guidance as to what should be considered in a zoning case and what should be found in order to 
make an appropriate decision.  Those guidelines, found in Section 445.110, and the staff comments 
concerning those, are as follows. 

 
When a proposed amendment would result in a change of the zoning classification of any specific 
property, the report of the Planning Commission shall contain statements as to the present 
classification, the classification under the proposed amendment, and the reason for seeking such 
re-classification, and determinations as to the following items: 
 
1. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of 

these Regulations; 
 
Staff believes this request is generally consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Regulations.  While the nature of the existing uses along this cul-de-sac are of lower commercial 
intensity, the restrictions within the Zoning Regulations to mitigate the impacts of the proposed 
use on surrounding residential properties appear to be adequate.  This cul-de-sac is accessed from 
8th Street and the properties are virtually considered to be on 8th Street, which serves as a major 
collector or minor arterial within the City.  The change to a broader commercial district will not 
harm the general area; however, as noted below, staff i

 
 
2. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property if it were re-classified would 

be compatible with the uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity; 
 
Staff believe District generally are not going to be 
harmful   
There may be some uses that could present problems; however it appears the size of the lot and 
the building would preclude most of the more harmful uses.  The most egregious uses would be 
those that offer alcohol; but the performance standards indicate no such use can occur in any 
building within 200 feet of a school or church.  The building on this lot is only about 125 feet 
from the school; which precludes the uses serving alcohol. 
 
3. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities, and all other needed public services, exist 

or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were re-
classified; 

 
There are adequate utilities available to support the proposed uses. 
 
4. The amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification as is 

proposed for the subject property in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special 
circumstances that make a substantial part of such vacant land unavailable for 
development; 
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 3 

There are some other properties that are currently zoned commercial that could accommodate the 
proposed use.  However finding one for sale and available is the challenge.  This particular 
property can be made to work. 

 
5. Whether the property as re-classified would be available for business or manufacturing 

uses, and whether such uses, particularly in the area in question, will provide business or 
manufacturing services or employment opportunities; 

 
Staff believes there would be material difference in the potential for employment opportunities if 
the property is rezoned.  The challenge for the property as zoned is the limitations of permitted 
uses in the existing zoning classification.  The higher commercial zoning category would provide 
a wider range of potential users. 

 
6. Whether the proposed amendment would correct an error in the application of these 

Regulations as applied to the subject property; and 
 
Staff does not believe there was an error in the existing zoning. 
 
7. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing 

conditions in the area affected, and, if so, the nature of such changed or changing 
conditions. 

 
Staff does believe the conditions in this area warrant the change in zoning classification.  More 
growth and development has occurred further to the west; the traffic patterns on 8 th Street are 
significantly different as time goes by; and the improvement of Rucker Road has added traffic 
loads much different than before that improvement in 2009.  All these contribute to the 
justification to a change in zoning. 

 
As previously stated, staff is inclined to be more supportive of a change to the Zoning Regulations to 
allow consideration of a Special Use Permit for conditions like this.  However, given the limitations noted 
above to the more egregious uses because of the proximity of the school and ch
Special Commercial may be appropriate. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends the request of Geary County Farm Bureau, owners, to 

ial 

Commercial District for the reasons stated above.   
 
Staff still believes this case might have been better suited as a Special Use Permit, as noted before.  If the 
MPC is more inclined to pursue that approach, a motion to table this request and call for a public hearing 
at the next meeting to amend the Junction City Zoning Regulations to allow that approach will be 
required. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
I move that Case No. Z-07-01-14, concerning the request of Geary County Farm Bureau, owners, to 

, be recommended for approval 
Commercial District by the City Commission based on the reasoning stated in the staff report and as 
presented at this public hearing. 
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JUNCTION CITY/MILFORD/GEARY COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

July 10, 2014 
 

Members     Members    Staff 
(Present)    (Absent)   (Present) 
  
Ken Mortensen     Maureen Gustafson   David Yearout     
John Moyer     Gayle Edmiston        Shari Lenhart 
Brandon Dibben 
Chuck Mowry 
Mike Watson 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 
 

Vice-Chair Mortensen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and declared a quorum of 
members present with the exception of Chair Gustafson and Commissioner Edmiston.   

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Commissioner Watson moved to approve the minutes of the June 12, 2014, meeting as written, 

with one correction on page 5 received calls from
personally with  seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. 

 
3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Item No. 1  Election of Officers. 
 
Commissioner Moyer moved to retain the same slate of officers:  Chair Gustafson, Vice-Chair 
Mortensen, and Secretary Yearout.  Commissioner Mowry seconded the motion and it carried 
unanimously. 

 
Item No. 2  Z-07-01-14  Public hearing for a zone change. 
 
Vice-Chair Mortensen opened the public hearing on the application of Geary County Farm 
Bureau, owners, to rezone the property located at 807 Barnhill Circle, Junction City, Kansas, from 

ercial District and called for the staff 
report. 
 
Commissioner Dibben disclosed his wife is on the Farm Bureau Board; however, this will not 
influence his judgment in making a decision. 
 
Mr. Yearout stated this property is pending a sale for use as a location for C & K Construction, 
which was denied a Special Use Permit last month to operate on residential property at 1306 
Johnson Drive.  Mr. Yearout stated Lisa Bledsow, Farm Bureau representative, came into the 
office and visited with staff about rezoning the Farm Bureau property at 807 Barnhill Circle to 
accommodate the proposed business.   
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Mr. Yearout stated  because it permitted the proposed use of 

screened.  Mr. Yearout stated district appropriate for the application 
knowing the Zoning Regulations authorize 
now believes is appropriate for this location.  In this case, the recommendation is to support a 

 
 
Mr. Yearout reviewed several of the different uses allowed in both districts, and explained what 
some might define as egregious uses  would be eliminated because this building at 807 Barnhill 
Circle is located less than 200 feet from the High School.  He indicated the staff report sets out in 
detail the reas  
 
Mr. Yearout stated another option would be for the Commission to recommend a text amendment 
to the Special Use Permit section of the Zoning Regulations to allow for this type of situation.  As 
also set out in the staff report, the Special  Use Permit option would allow flexibility for 

to approve, deny or modify a rezoning application.  The Special Use Permit option would allow for 
consideration of an individual use in a zoning district, which 

Mr. Yearout informed the Commission, if they wished, 
they could set a public hearing for a text amendment at their next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

District for the reasons stated above and as outlined in the staff report.  Mr. Yearout also stated, 
in light of such recommendation, staff believes this case is a perfect example where the option of 
a Special Use Permit would be aptly suited.  Mr. Yearout reiterated the Commission might, if they 
are uncomfortable with changing the zoning, table this case and pursue the option of a text 
amendment to address this type of situation as a Special Use Permit. 
 
Vice-Chair Mortensen inquired why the Special Use Permit process was not applicable to this 
situation.  Mr. Yearout explained a Special Use Permit would only be applicable if the proposed 
use was not listed in another district.  Mr. Yearout stated the last amendment specifically 
addressed allowing a parking lot on residential property for an adjacent commercial business; 
e.g., Mr.  
 
There being no further questions of staff, Vice-Chair Mortensen opened the hearing for public 
comment. 
 
Don Carrier, 1064 West Chestnut, stated he was representing the applicant as Vice-President 
on the Farm Bureau Board.  Mr. Carrier explained the building has been vacant for approximately 
one year and they have had a hard time trying to get it sold.  There have been problems with the 
school children being on the property and being able to sell the building to Mr. Osbourn is in the 
best interest of the Board.  Mr. Carrier asked the Commission to recommend approval of the 
requested zone change. 
 
Mr. Yearout noted that Mrs. Josephine Rago, who had come into the Planning and Zoning Office, 
was present in the audience.  Mrs. Rago stated she and her sister live at 814 Barnhill Circle.  
When they received notice of the public hearing, they visited the Planning Office and received 
additional information on the case.  Mrs. Rago stated they were satisfied with  
and what they read in the Staff Report and do not have any objection to the requested zone 
change. 
 
There being no further comments, the Vice-Chair closed the public hearing and opened the case 
for discussion by the Commission. 
 
Discussion ensued on the advisability of pursuing a Special Use Permit text amendment to 
provide an option for this type of situation.  Members felt the option of a Special Use Permit would 
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whether or not it would be suitable at a requested location.  The Special Use Permit would be an 
ideal option, due to the fact conditions can be stipulated and each use would be individually 
considered.   
 
Comments were made as to whether or not it was necessary to table this case until a text 
amendment could be considered
an additional two months, or more.  It was the consensus of the Commission, in this case, a 

neighborhood because of the proximity of the school, and the size of the lot pretty much limits any 
 

 
Vice-Chair Mortensen commented he visited with Dr. Reynolds, whose office is next door, and Dr. 
Reynolds did not express any objection to Mr. Osbourn using the property for his construction 
business.  
 
Commissioner Moyer moved that Case No. Z-07-01-14, concerning the request of Geary County 
Farm Bureau, owners, to rezone property located at 807 Barnhill Circle, Junction City, Kansas, 

neral Commercial District, be recommended 
for approval to the  by the City Commission based on the 
reasoning stated in the staff report and as presented at this public hearing.  Commissioner 
Watson seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Mowry moved to schedule a public hearing for the August, 2014, meeting of the 

Regulations relating to Special Use Permits by adding language concerning when and where said 
authorizations may be used.  Commissioner Dibben seconded the motion and it carried 
unanimously. 
 

4. GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 

Item No. 1  Update on Comprehensive Plan - Presentation by RDG 
 
Ms. Amy Haase, RDG, representative stated they had several individuals from the public attend 
the open house and presentation held earlier in the afternoon.  Ms. Haase stated inquiries and 
suggestions included questions on the extension of East Street; the possibility of Washington 
Street being extended to the south to Lyons Creek Road; questions on the projections of 
absorption rates for the vacant lots; the value of encouraging development where infrastructure 
exists; providing an explanation of the new Land Bank program; the potential 
commercial/industrial development around Taylor Road; access to federal funds for road projects; 
and other related issues.  
 
Commissioner Moyer stated the Library was omitted on the list of public facilities and it needs to 
be added.  In addition, the rural fire department was established much later 
likely in  
 
Mr. Yearout stated the intention is to have the balance of the document submitted to the 
Commission prior to the August meeting, with the hope the MPC will set the public hearing for the 
update to the Comp Plan in September.  Mr. Yearout explained the final process to adopt the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan involves a public hearing to be held by the Planning Commission 
and from there to the Governing Bodies for final adoption.  The anticipated timeframe is to hold 
the public hearing at the September meeting, or at the latest in October.  Final adoption is still 
planned before the end of the year. 
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Item No. 2  Metropolitan Planning Organization  
 
 Mr. Yearout stated nothing new, everything is continuing on schedule.  Staff is still planning to 

have a presentation from Stephanie Watts, the Regional Transportation Planner, on the Traffic 
Demand Model later this year. 

 
 Item No. 3  Other Items 
 
 Mr. Yearout stated the , from the June, 2014, Planning magazine 

was provided for information only.  This is not because anyone was doing anything wrong, but 
staff felt it was a very good story that explained the importance for planning commissioners to 
understand the potential legal pitfalls, which might arise from a private site visit.  Mr. Yearout said 
a good example would be the rock quarry case of last year because interested parties tried to 
lobby commissioners on an individual level. 

 
5. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further items for discussion, Vice-Chair Mortensen declared the meeting 
adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 14th day of August 2014. 

__________________________________________ 
Ken Mortensen, Vice-Chair 
 
ATTEST: 

__________________________________________ 
David L. Yearout, Secretary 
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